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ATTORNEY GENERALMftVO'1'20 ̂ 10=45 DftS

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

33 CAPITOL STREET

CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6397

GORDON J. MACDONALD

ATTORNEY GENERAL

JANE E. YOUNG

DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

April 30, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice (DOJ) to enter into subgrants with the organizations
listed below in the total amount of $483,073 from the New Hampshire 2019 Statewide Drug
Court Project Grant. The purpose of this grant is to elevate the use of evidence-based practices
and principles; build capacity in risk and needs assessment; ensure access to evidence-based
services; expand the use of recovery support services; and facilitate successful recovery for all
adult Drug Court participants. The subgrants will be effective upon Governor and Executive
Council approval through September 30, 2022. 100% Federal Funds.

02-20-20-201510-1067, Drug Court Improvement Grant

Account Subrecipient Vendor# TOTAL

Subgrant

072-500575 New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor
Association, Concord, NH

170428-B001 $89,633

072-500575 JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.,
Bow, NH

161611-BOOl $393,440

TOTAL - - $483,073

EXPLANATION

Subgrants will be used to implement the Drug Court Assessment, Training, and Technical
Assistance (DCATT) program. DCATT will be implemented through a collaboration between
the New Hampshire Judicial Branch, Office of the New Hampshire Drug Offender Program, the
John Snow Institute (JSI), and the New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors
Association (NHADACA). The New Hampshire Drug Courts Statewide Coordinator (Statewide
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Coordinator) will provide project oversight in coordination with the Grants Management Unit at
the Departrnent of Justice. The Statewide Coordinator will work with JSI to develop assessment
protocols and evaluation questions for data analysis and to identify training and technical
assistance needs, and conference themes. The Statewide Coordinator will work with
NHADACA to establish topics and a timeline for trainings and oversee their efforts to ensure
that mental health and social work professionals will receive Continuing Education Units (CEU)
for their attendance.

The JSI, a 40-year old non-profit agency dedicated to the enhancement of public health,
will utilize funds to conduct a data inventory and needs assessment for each Drug Court. The
data assessment will collect information from each adult Drug Court on its data utilization, data
gaps, and technical assistance needs. This will be done through.a combination of site visits to
each of the ten Drug Courts, key informant interviews, and surveys (as appropriate and
necessary). Data will be used to develop targeted training and technical assistance around data
collection and use. In addition, JSI will assist in the study and evaluation of the state's Drug
Courts' recidivism rates.

NHADACA is a state leader in professional development for substance use
professionals who offer services to people with substance use disorders. The subgrant to
NHADACA will assist with the identification of sponsors and vendors and participation in
general planriing meetings for the annual Drug Court Training Conference. NHADACA will
assist in impact studies of evidence based assessments and treatments used for Drug Court
participants who have been impacted by personal trauma. In addition, NHADACA will
facilitate at least four additional virtual trainings for all Drug Courts in New Hampshire.

The design and objectives for the statewide DCATT project are based on a strategic and
targeted training and technical assistance approach that is data-informed and based on the
specific needs of the adult Drug Courts in New Hampshire. Through this project, the DCATT
project will provide a framework to enhance Drug Court practices, monitoring and evaluation,
and sustaining partnerships in the Drug Court community across the state.

In the event that federal funds are no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you for your consideration of
this request.

Respectfully submitted.

#2723640

MacDonald

Attorney General
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GRANT AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Subrecipient hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

1. Identification and Deflnidons.
general provisions

I.I. Stale Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.3. Subrecipient Name
New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors
Association

I.S Subrecipient Phone tf

603-724-7520

1.6. Account Number

1067-072-500575

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Kathleen D. "Carr

1.2. State Agency Address

33 Capitol St. Concord, NH 03301

1.4. Subrecipient Address

130 Pembroke Rd. Ste 100 Concord, NH 03301

1.7. Completion Date

9/30/2022

1.8. Grant Limitation
S

89,633

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-1234

have con^licd wi.h any pnblic rcqnircnKn. fo, anccp«„ca of .his
grant,

1.11. Subrecipient Signature I

Subrecipient Signature 2 ff Applicable

1.12. Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 1

Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 2 If Applicable

New Hampshire. County of ^ ^

MtisU^Jrilv omvan't P""" W'ntined in block 1.12., known & me;.(or
-""""'""Scd .ha, he/she cxieuted .his '

I■ 13.1 Signature ofNotary of the Peace

(Seal) .

Justi

-h

PAUUiiAN,Not»'''-*'^.»Wic
StatBOfNewHe

i\ 'VimmlBSjonGKpires f.aoei

I 13.2. Name & Title of Not^ Public or Justice of the Peace
o uc P(kA

1. 14. State Agency Signature(5) 1.15. Name & Title of State Agency Signorfs)

1.16. Approval by Aiiomcy General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

// / / , Assistant Attorney General, On; .1 1.
04/13/2020

1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable) •
By:

On: /  /

'" "''""q provided by Ihe Smta of New Hampshire, aeling through the AaenCy
■te ̂  bteinimV .;cfe.Ted ,0 as ".te Sia.e"), .he Sub«elpien. iden.if,ed in block 1,3 (hcTeinaner refened

Subrecipient lnilial(g):ZfD
Da.e:
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Except as otherwise specifkaliy provicM for herein, the 9.2.
Subrecipient shnO perform the Project in, with respect to, (he State of New.
Hatnpehtrv.
EPraCTfVE DATC: COMPLETtON' OF PROJECT

This Agreement, and all obligations of (he panics hereunder, shall beconte 9.3.
effective on the date on the date of tpprmal of (his Agreement by the Goverior
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.17), or upon 9.4.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 Cihe effective date*^.
Except OS otherwise speclflcaiiy provided herein, the Project, including all.
repoits required by this Agreemeni, shall be completed in.ffS etttireiy prior to
the date in block 1.7 {hereiiufler refcTTCd to as Ihe Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYh4ENT. 9.5.
The Grant AmouM is ideniifxd and more panicularly described in EXHrBIT B,
attached hereto. ' )0.
The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth In EXHIBIT B.
In accordance with ibe proxislou set forth In EXHIBIT B. and in corulderaiion
of the salisCactory perfonnance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagiaph S.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Subrecipient (he Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amoum
otherwise payable to (be Subrecipient under this subparagreph SJ those sums
required, or petmhied, to be wjthhdd pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7<.
The payment by (he State ol the Gram amount shall be the only, and the
cotnpkte paymeot to the Subrecipient for all expenses, of whatever nature. M.
incurred by the Subrecipient in the performance'ttercor, and shall be the only, I I.I.
and the complete, compensation to the Subrecipient for the Project. The State
shall have no liabilities to the Subrecipient other than the Grant Aoiount.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the conireiy. and It.1.1
notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the i«a) of all 11.1.2
payments authorized, or actually made, hereunder exceed the Gram limluiicn il.1.3
set (bith in block 1.8 ofthesegeneral provisiom 11.1.4
COMPLIANCE BY SUBRECIPIENT WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. 11.2.

In cooiwction with the performance of the Pft)|eci, the Subrecipient shall comply
with all statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, couiuy. or 11.2.1
tnumdpal authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the
Subrecipient. Including tbe acquisition of any attd all necessary permits.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS

Bctvvecn the Effective Date and the date three (3) years aflcr the Compktion
Date (he Subrecipient shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in il 2.2
conneaion with the Profect. including, but not limited to. costs of
adminisiraiion, innsporuuibn. insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials
and services. Such accounts shall be supponed by receipts, in\'oices. bills and
other similar docuTiKnis.

Between the Effective Date and (he date' three (3) years allff the Completion
Date, at any lime during the Subreciptent's normal busineu hours, and as oRen 112 3
as the State shall demand, the Subrecipient shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall 11.24
p^ii the State to audU. exatnine. aiid reproduce such records] and to moke
audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data 12.
(as thai term ishereinafler defined), and other tnfbnnation relatiitg toad matters 12.1
covered by this Agreement As used in this paragraph. "Subracipient" Includes
all persons, natural or ftctionaJ, arUltaled with, controlled by. or under common
ownership with, the entity jdcniifted as the Subrecipient in block 1,3 of these
provisions

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to 12.2.
perform the Project. The Subrccipffnt warrants that all personnel engaged in (he
Projeci shall be qualified to perform strch Projeei. and sholl be properly licensed
and authorized to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Subrecipient shall net hire, and it shall not permit any subconlracior. 12.3.
subgnuitee. or other person, .rum or corporation with whom it is engaged in a
combined efroh to p^orm the Project, to hire any peraon who has a coniiaciual
relationship with t^ State, or wto is a Suite officer or enqsloyee. elected or
bppointed.
The Oiani OITiccr shall be the representative of the State hereunder. In the event 12.4.
of any dispute hereunder, the inicrpretaiion of this Agreement by the Croni
Officer, and hisiha derision on any dispute, shall be ilf»l
DATA. RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS

As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all inrormaiiori and 13
ihitigs deteloped or obtained during the performance of. or acquired or
developed by reason of. this Agjeemeni. including, but not iimiied to. all studies.
repoTu. filu. fomwtae. surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pkiorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations.'
computer programs, computer printouix. notes, letters, manonnda. paper, and
documemt. all whether finished or unfinished.

Between the Effective Date and the Complclion Dale the Subrecipient shall
gretu to the State, or any person designated by it, utuestrkted access to all data
for cxaminaiian, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any
other purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other countiy by
anyone other than (he Stale.
On and alfer the Eflbctive Date all datn. and. any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with fitnds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the properly of the State, and dtall be returned to the
State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shall first occur.

The Stale, and anyone it shall designate, shad have unrestricted authority to
publish, dticlose, distribute and otherwise use. In whole or in pan, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the cottirary, all oblivions of the State hereunder. including,
without limitation, (he continuance of payments hereunder, ore contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriailoit of flmds. and In no event shall the
Stale be liable for any paymems hereunder in excess of such available or
appropriated fkmds. b the event of a reduciioa or termination ofthose funds, the
Stale thai) have ifie right to withhold payment until such funds become
available, if ever, and shall have the rij^ to (ernilniNe this Apeemem
immediately upon giving (be Subrccipieni ootke ofsuch termination.
EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Subrectpieni shall
constitute an event of default hereuttdcr (hereinafler referred to as "Events of
Default");
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule: or
Failure to submit any report required berhtnder; or
Failure to maimain, w permit access to. the records required hereunder; or
Failure to perform any of the <Rher covenants and conditions of this Agreemeni.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default the Store may take any one. or
more, or all. of the following octioos:
dive the Si^cipient a wriuen notice specifying the Event of Default and
icquiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser
specilkaiion of time, thirty (30) days (bom the date of the notice; and If the
Event of Default is not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days affer giving the Subrecipient notice of termination: and
Give the Subrecipieoi a written notice specifying the Event of Oefauti and
suspending all payments to be nude under this Agreemem and ordering that the
pottlon of the Grim Amount which would eihetwise accrue to the Subrecipient
during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Subiecipient has cured the Event of Delbult shall never be
paid to the Subrecipient; and
Set off against any other obligation the State may owe to the Subrecipient any
damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default: end
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at Ifw or in
equity, or both.

TERMfNATION.
In the event of ony early terminatioti of this Agreement for aivy renson 4^ than
the completion of the Project, the Siibreeipienl shall deliver uijhe Grant'Onicer..
not later than nifctn (15) days after the date of terminuitoit.'a report()terrinqlfeb
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Projeci Work
performed, and the Gram Amount earned, to and including the date of
termination. '

In the event of Termination under paragraphs' 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, tbe approval of such a TcTmination Report by the State shall entitle
the Subrecipient to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and -
including the dote of termination.
In the. event of Terminuion under'paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of siich a Terminaiion Report by the Slate shall in no
event relieve the ̂ brecipient from any and all liability for damages sustained or
iiKurred by the State as a result of the Subreciplcnt*s breach of its obUgatioiu
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in (his Agreemeni to (he contrary, either the State or.
except where notice default has been given to the Subrecipient hereunder. the
Subiecipient. may leminoie this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days
»vritten notice.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the
Siibrccipkm. artd no representative. ofTlcer or employee oT (be State of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or localiciei in which tbe
Projeci is to be performed, w-ho exercises any furtctions or respoosibillues in ibe
review or approval of the iindensking or csirying out of such Projeci. shall
participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which alTccts his or her

Rev.9.'2015 Poge 2 of 6 Subrecipient Initial(s): M.
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18.
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pmonal iotefesi or (he bleesi of any cofporation. paitnerihip. or ouocjadoa
in which he or she is directly or Indirectly interested, nor thftJl he or she have
any penooaJ or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this AKrccment or the
proceeds thereof.
SUBRECIPIENT-S RELATION' Tn Thp Ctatp In the performance oflhU
Agreement the Subreciptent, its employees, and any subconliaetor or
subgrMiee of the Subrecipiem arc In all respecu independoit contracton. and
are neither agentj nor employees of the State. Neither the Snbrecipient nor any
of its officers, entployees. agents, members, sidKontracion at subgranieet,
shall have authority to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits,
workmen's compensstion or emohttnems provided by the Stale to iu
empbyees, .
ASSIG>fMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subreciplent shall not assign,
or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement wiiboui the prior written
consent of the Stale. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted isr
subgranted by the Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without (he
prior written consent ofthe State.

INPEMNIFICATtQN. The Subrecipiem shall defend, indemnify and hold 20.
harmless the State, Its officers and employees, ftxmi and against any itnd all
losses suffered by the Stitc. its olfiecrs and employees, and any and ail claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted agiinst the State, its omccrs and employees, by
or on bch^r of any person, on account of. based on, rcsultmg from, arising out 21
of (Of which may be chimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
SubnxipicBt or subcontnclor, or subgrantcc Or other agent of the Subrecipient
Noiwilhstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained dull be deemed to
consiituic a waiver of the sovereign trnmunity of the State whkh immunity is
hereby reserved to the Stale. This covenant shall survive the tcrminaiioo of
this agreement. 2)
INSURANCE AND RftMO
The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and inainiaiD in force, or 23.
shall require any subconiraeior, subgrentcc or assignee perfoiming Project
work to obtain and mainuin in force, both for the benefit of the Suic the
following insurance:
Statutory workmen's compensation and employees liability insurance for sll 24
ciTS>loyc«s engaged in the performance of the Project, and
Comprehcnii« public liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or property damage, in amounu not less than SI ,000,000 per occunencc
and S2.000.000 tggrc^c for bodily injury or death any one incident, and
SSOO.OOO for property damage in any one incidcnii and

The policies described in subparograph 17.1 of this parograph shall be the
standard form employed m the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, nod authorized to do business In the State of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibittng ctuicelhtion or
modificatioD of the policy earfier than tenHOI days after wiiticn notice thereof
has been received by the State.
WAIVER GF BREACH- No failure by the State to enforce any provisions
hereof alter any Event of Ucfauli shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event
of Default shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of
w«im shall deemed a waiva of the right of the State to enforce each and all
of the pfoviikioa hereof upon any flirther or other defkuli on the pan of the
Sabrecipieni.
y^TlCg. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to
have been duly Wh-ercd or given at the time of mailing by certified mail,
postage prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to (he parties at the
addresses first above given. ,
AMENPMEKT- This Agfeemem may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an Instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after iKnoval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor sikI Council of the
State of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency;
CONSTRUCTION OF AGRggMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
cofistnicd in accordance with the law of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inuirs to the benefit of the panics and their iespccii\-e
successors and assignees. The csptions and contents of the "Subject" blaitk are
used only as a matter of ctmvcnicnce. and are not to be considered a part of this '
Agreement or to be used in determining the intend t>r the ponies hereto.
THIRD PARHES- The panics hereto do not Inteiid to benefit any ihitd parties
and this Agreerncnt shall not be constmcd to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AQREfiMENj This Agrccntent, which may be executed in a numb^
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an origiiui, conslituics the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and siqrcisedes all prior
agreemertls and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROViein^-^ The additional provisioru set forth in Exhibit C
hereto arc incorporated as part of this agreement.

Rev. 9.2015 Pftge 3 ofO Subrecipient Initialfs)
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EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association as Subrccipicnt
shall receive a grant from the New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for expenses
incurred for support in providing assessment, training and technical assistance to further
enhance the NH Drug Court Program.

2. The Subrecipient shall be leimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the slate approved expenditure reporting form as provided!
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January 1. thefirst quarterly
report is due on April 15'* or 15 days after the close ofthe first quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state ftinds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation should be maintained for at least 5 years after the close of the project.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shall be made by Subrccipicnt to accommodate the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-8091 orTravis.Teeboom@dqj.nh.gov

Page 4 of 6 >
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EXHIBIT B

-SCHEDULE/TERMS OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reiinbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ^s
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

/  ■
3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in the Grant Agreement, Sections 1.8.

3a.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $89,633 of the
total Grant Limitation upon Governor and Executive Council approval to
9/30/2022, with approved expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on
continued federal funding and program performance.

i. With sufficient reason, the Subrecipient may request an extension of the
grant period to 9/30/2023. The Subrecipient must submit the request in
writing. No extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ and the
Bureau of the Justice Assistance in writing.

ii. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or
costs incurred under this agreement prior to Governor and Executive
Council approval, nor after 9/30/2022, or 9/30/23 if extension is granted.

Page 5 of 6 .
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

l. Subrecipient shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and
specifications detailed in the Adult Drug Court Discretionary Gram Rules and ispecial
Conditions as Exhibit C, which is subject to annual review.

Page 6 of 6 .
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Exhibit C

ADULT DRUG COURT DISCRETIONARY GRANT
SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Cranl#2019.DC-BX.nni7

'■ Requirements pf the a-ward; remedies for non-compliance or For materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the subrecipient that relate to conduct
during the period of performance also is a material requirement of this award. By signing and
accepting this award on behalf of the subrecipient, the authorized subrecipient official accepts all
material requirements of the award, and specifically adopts all such assurances or certifications
as if personally executed by the authorized subrecipient official.
Failure to comply with any one or more of these award requirements whether a condition set out
in fiill below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification
related to conduct during the award period may result in the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP")
taking appropriate action with respect to the subrecipient and the award. Among other things, the
OJP may withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. The U.S.
Department of Justice ("DOJ"), including OJP or the NH Dept of Justice ("NHDOJ") also may
take other legal action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this
award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution
(including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead
to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise
(including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this awai^ be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its
terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the
maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held, instead, that the provision is utterly invalid
or unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed sevcrabic from this award.

2. Applicabihtv of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R.
Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Pan 200
Uniform Requirements") apply to this FY 2019 award from OJP.

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26, 2014. If this
FY 2()19 award supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under the same award number
(e.g., funds awarded during or before December 2014), the Part 200 Unifonn Requirements

Revised December-2019
Drug Court Special Condltion$-2019



Exhibit C

apply wiih respect to all funds under that award number (regardless of the award date, and
regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental award) that are obligated
on or after the acceptance date of this FY 2019 award.

'For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP
awards and subawairds ("subgrants"); see the OJP vyebsitc at

https://ojp.gov/f\inding/Part200UniformRequirements.htm:

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3 years from the
date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF 425), unless a different retention period
applies and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier) must provide
access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial records,
supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R.
200.333.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or
distributed by OJP that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the provisions of
the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the subrecipient is to contact the NHDOJ Grants
Management Unit promptly for clarification.

3. Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted
■  on the OJP website (currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at

https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any updated version that may be posted
"• during the period of performance. The subrecipient agrees to comply with the DOJ Grants

Financial Guide.

4. Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September 1,2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S.
Code were editorially reclassificd (that is, moved and renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled
"Crime Control and Law Enforcement." The reclassification encompassed a number of statutory
provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and cooperative agreements), including
many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1,2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision
that has been reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference to that

statutory provision as reclassified to Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes
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references set out in award conditions, references set out in material incorporated by reference
through award conditions, and references set out in other award requirements.

5. Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate
I

A subrccipient that is eligible under the'Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law
to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to use
the de minimis' indirect cost rate, must advise the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit in writing
of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the
Part 200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total
direct costs (MTDC) as defined by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

6- Requirement to report potentiallv duplicative funding

If the subrccipient currently has other active awards of federal fiinds, or if the subrectpient
receives any other award of federal funds during the period of perfomiance for this award, the
subrccipient promptly must determine whether funds from any of those other federal awards
have been, are being, or arc to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical cost
items for which funds are provided under this award. If so, the subrccipient must promptly
notify the NHDOJ Grant Management Unit in writing of the potential duplication, and, if so
requested by the NHDOJ, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-projecl-scope.'

related to System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements

The subrccipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award
Management (SAM), currently accessible at httpsV/www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable
requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as maintaining the currency of
information in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to first-
tier subrecipicnts (first-tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do
not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the unique entity identifier required for SAM
registration.

The details of the subrecipicnt's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are
posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore./SAM.him (Award condition:
System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal Identifier Requirements), and are
incorporated by reference here.

This condition docs not apply to ah award to an individual who received the award as a natural
person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or
operate in his or her name).

3
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I

8. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. Hic recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is
or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award fiinds, the recipient (or any subrecipient)
properly verifies the employment eligibility of the individual who is being hired, consistent
with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. I324a(a)(l) and (2).

B. Notify all persons associated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who are or will be
involved in activities under this award of both—

(1) This award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2) that, generally speaking, make
it unlawful, in the United States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide lraining (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be
notified of the award requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the
associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a (a) (I) and (2).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to
compliance with this award condition in accordance with Form 1-9 record retention

requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

-2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with
this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs,are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award fiinds
may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to
ensure compliance with this condition.
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4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in the hiring process

For purposes of this condition, per^ns "who are or will be involved in activities under this
award* speciftcally includes (without Itmitation) any and all recipient (or any subrecipient)
officials or other staff who arc or will be involved in the hiring process with respect to a
position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of
employment eligibility, the recipient (or any subrecipient) may choose to participate in, and
use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate person authorized to act on
behalf of the recipient (or subrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify
procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfimiation" or a "Final
Nonconfirmation") to confirm erriployment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the
United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the
Virgin Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana
Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any
subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including
any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any
recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation
otherwise imposed by law, Including 8 U.S.C. 1324a (a) (I) and (2).

Questions about E-Vcrify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify visit
the E-Verify website (https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-
Vcrify employer agents can email E- Verify at E-VcrifyEmploycrAgcnt@dhs.gov.
Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award
acceptance.
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9. Reouirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PlI)

The recipient (and any "subrecipient" at any tier) must have written procedures in place to
respond in the event of an actual or imminent "breach" (0MB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient) -
- (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of

"personally identifiable information (PlI)" (2 CFR 200.79) within the scope of an OJP grant-

funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (0MB
Circular A-130).

In the event of an actual, or imminent, breach of Personally Identifiable Information of a Lf S

Department of Justice funded program or activity by a subrecipient, the subrecipient must have a

procedure in place that indicates that the Grants Management Unit will be notified of the breach

by the end of the business day (4:00 p.m. EST) that the breach was reported. An e-mail will be
sent to Granis(Sdoj.nh.gov, which e-mails every staff member in the Grants Management Unit,

notifying the Unit of the breach. The Grants Management Unit Administrator, or designee, will
respond to the subrecipient's e-mail notifying receipt of the notification by the end of the

business day that it was received. If the subrecipient does not receive a confirmation e-mail from

the Grants Management Unit, the subrecipient shall call the NHDOJ main number, (603)271-
36S8, and request to speak to the Grants Management Unit and report the breach.

10. - Ait subawards f"subgrants"i must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable

requirements for authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that for

purposes of federal grants administrative requirements OJP considers a "subaward" (and
therefore does not consider a procurement "contract").

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site

at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SubawardAuthori2ation.htm (Award condition: All

subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization), and are incorporated by
reference here.

11. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in anv procurement
contract that would exceed S250.000

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any

procurement contract that would exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently,

$250,000). This condition applies to agreements that for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore docs not

consider a subaward).
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The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a
procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site a!

https://ojp.gov/ftinding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award condition: Specific
post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract (if
contract would exceed $250,000), and are incorporated by reference here.

*2- restrictions on compelition under the award: association with federal government

SCOPE. This condition applies with respect to any procurement of property or services that is
funded (in whole or in part) by this award, whether by the recipient or by any subrecipient at any
tier, and regardless of the dollar amount of the purchase or acquisition, the method of
procurement, or the nature of any legal instrument used. The provisions of this condition must be
among those included in any subaward (at any tier).

1. in procurement transactions, against associates ofthefederal
government

Consistent with the (DOJ) Part 200 Uniform Requirements including as set out at 2 C.F.R.
200.300 (requiring awards to be "manage[d] and administer[ed] in a manner so as to ensure that
Federal funding is expended and associated programs are implemented in full accordance with
U.S. statutory and public policy requirements") and 200.319(a) (generally requiring "[a]ll
procurement transactions [to] be conducted in a manner providing full and open compelition"
and forbidding practices "restrictive of competition," such as "[pjlacing unreasonable
requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do business" and taking "[a]ny arbitrary
action in the procurement process") — no recipient (or subrecipient, at any tier) may (in any
procurement transaction) discriminate against any person or entity on the basis of such person or
entity's status as an "associate of the federal government" (or on the basis of such person or
entity s status as a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary of such an associate), except as expressly set out
in 2 C.F.R. 200.319(a) or as specifically authorized by USDOJ,

2. Monitoring

The recipients monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with
this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds
may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to
ensure compliance with this condition. '
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4. Rules ofconstruction

A. The term "associate of the federal government" means any person or entity engaged or
employed (in the past or at present) by or on behalf of the federal government as an
employee, contractor or subcontractor (at any tier), grant recipient or subrccipient (at any
tier), agent, or otherwise in undertaking any work, project, or activity for or on behalf of (or
in providing goods or services to or on behalf of) the federal government, and includes any
applicant for such employment or engagement, and any person or entity committed by legal
instrument to undertake any such work, project, or activity (or to provide such goods or
services) in future.

B. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any
subrecipieni at any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including
any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

13. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including
rcDortine requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrccipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements (including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct
related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipienfs
("subgrantccs"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of the
recipient or of any subrccipient.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in
persons are posted on the OJP web site at htips://ojp.gov/fiinding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-
Trafflcking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to
trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)),
and are incorporated by reference here.

14. Determination of suitabilitv to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated in the application for the award (as
approved by DOJ) (or in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding
announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal statute that a purpose of some or all of the
activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the recipient, or a subrccipient at any
tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.
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The recipient, and any subreciplcnt at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before
certain individuals may interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless
of an individual's employment status.
The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at

https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Intcract-Minors.htm (Award condition: Determination of
• suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with participating
minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

'5. Compliance w^th applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences.
meetings, trainings, and other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
laws, regulations, policies, and officia] DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior
approval and reporting requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for
expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food
and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.
Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award
appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward
Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

'6. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The recipient mustcoliect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness of
work under this award, the data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within the
timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation or other applicable written guidance.
Data collection supports compliance with the Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA)
and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

17. OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient - or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any
tier - develops or delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding
Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees, available at
htlPSi^/ojp.gov/fundinp/ImDlement/Trainii

IS- Effect of failure to address audit i.ssue.s

The subrecipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as
appropriate) or NHDOJ may withhold award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if
(as deteimined by the DOJ awarding agency or NHDOJ) the subrecipient docs not satisfactorily

9
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and promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform

Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection

with audits, investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

19. Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient and subrecipient at any tier agrees to comply with any additional requirements that

may be imposed by the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period
of performance for this award, if the recipient is designated as "high- risk" for purposes of the
DOJ high-risk grantee list.

20. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.

Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart

E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity program.

21. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.
Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable

requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in
certain "education programs."

22. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.

EartM

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable

requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 (as may be applicable from time to time), specifically
including any applicable requirements regarding written notice to program beneficiaries and

prospective program beneficiaries.

Currently, among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of

discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or
refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38, currently, also sets out rules and

requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee") organizations that engage

in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to
recipients and subrecipients that ore faith-based or religious organizations.

10
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/

The text of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 is avaitabtc via the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations
(currently accessible at https://www.ccfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?page«browse), by browsing to Title
28-JiKiicial Administration, Chapter 1, Part 38, under e-CFR "current" data.

23. Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the
recipient, or any subrccipienl ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or
oppose the enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any
level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may be exceptions if an applicable federal
statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by law.)
Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the
recipient, or any subrecipicnt at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence)
a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them)
with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract,
subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing, extending, or modifying any
such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an exception
that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a subrecipient)would
or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the subrecipient is to contact the NHDOJ
Grants Management Unit for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written
approval of NHDOJ.

24. Compliance with eenerai approortations^law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY 20191

The subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier must comply with all applicable restrictions on the
use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions, including
from various "general provisions" in the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2019, are set out at
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FYI9AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are incorporated by
reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a subrecipient) would
or might fall within the scope of an appfopriations-law restriction, the subrecipient is to contact
the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit for guidance, and may not proceed without the express
prior written approval of the NHDOJ.

25. Reporting potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient and any subrecipients ("subgrantecs") must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the
Inspector General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient,
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contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds under this award - (I)
submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil

violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gramity, or similar misconduct.
Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award
should be reported to the OIG by"(l) online submission accessible via the OIG webpagc at
https://oigjustice.gov/hotline/contaci-grants.htm (select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail
directed to: Office of the Inspector General, U.S. Department of Justice, Investigations Division,
1425 New York Avenue, N.W. Suite 7100, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (3) by facsimile
directed to the DOJ OIG Fraud Detection Office (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881
(fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at httDs://oig.iustice.gov/horline.

f

26. Restrictions and cenifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters '

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantcc") under this award, or entity that receives a
procurement contract or subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee
or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or
otherwise restricts, or puiports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of
waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to
contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified
information), Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or any other
form issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure of classified
information.

I. In accepting this award, the recipient

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or
statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict
(orpuiport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse
as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it leams or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or
contractors to execute agreements or staitemcnts that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to
prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will immediately
stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written notification to the
federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption oO such obligations
only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.
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2. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make stibawai'ds ("subgrants"),
procurement contracts, or both

a. it represents that

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will
receive award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgfant"), procurement contract, or
subcontract under a procurement contract) either requires or has required internal confidentiality
agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise
currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting
waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) It has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support
this representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it Icams or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor
entity that receives funds tinder this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors
to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or
restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any
further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such
obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

27. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal: notice to emDlQvee.sV

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all
applicable provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under
specified circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the employee's
disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a gross waste of
federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger
to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, of regulation related to a federal grant.
The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language
of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.
Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award,
the recipient is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

28. Encoufaeement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients
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("subgrantces") lo adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text messaging while
driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this award, and lo establish
workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease

crashes caused by distracted drivers.

29. Requirement to disclose whether subrecipicnt is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making
agency outside of DOJ, if the subrecipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making
agency outside of DOJ, currently or at any lime during the course of the period of performance
under this award, the subrecipient must disclose that fact and certain related information to the
NHDOJ. Grants Management Unit by email at Thofnas.Kaempfer@doi.nh.gov. . For purposes of
tilis'disclosure, high risk includes any status under which a federal awarding agency provides
additional oversight due to the recipient's past performance, or other programmatic or financial
concerns with the subrecipient. The subrecipiem's disclosure must include the following: 1. The
federal awarding agency that currently designates the subrecipient high risk, 2. The date the
subrecipient was designated high risk, 3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding
agency (name, phone number, and email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as
set out by the federal awarding agency.

30. The subrecipient agrees to submit to BJA for review and approval any curricula, training
materials, proposed publications, reports, or any other written mateiials that will be published,
including web-based materials and web site content, through funds from this grant at least thirty
(30) working days prior to the targeted dissemination date. Any written, visual, or audio
publications, with the exception of press releases, whether published at the grantee's or
government's expense, shall contain the following statements: "This project was supported by
Grant No. 2019-DC-BX-0017 awarded by the Bureau of Justice Assistance. The Bureau of

Justice Assistance is a component of the Department of Justice's Office of Justice Programs,
which also includes the Bureau of Justice Statistics, the National Institute of Justice, the Office
of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, the Office for Victims of Crime, and the
SMART Office. Points of view or opinions in this document are those of the author and do not

necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S. Department of Justice." The
current edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide provides guidance on allowable printing and
publication activities.

31. Cooperating with OJP Monitoring

The subrecipient agrees to cooperate'with OJP monitoring of this award pursuant to OJP's
guidelines, protocols, and procedures, and to cooperate with OJP (including the grant manager
for this award and the Office of Chief Financial Officer (OCFO)) requests related to such
monitoring, including requests related to desk reviews and/or site visits. The subrecipicnt agrees
to provide to OJP all documentation necessary for OJP to complete its monitoring tasks,
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including documentation related to any subawards at any tier made under this award. Further,
the subrecipient agrees to abide by reasonable deadlines set by OJP for providing the requested
documents. Failure to cooperate with OJP's monitoring activities may result in actions that affect
the subrecipient s DOJ awards, including, but not limited to: withholdings and/or other
restrictions on the recipient's access to award funds; referral to the DOJ GIG for audit review;
designation of the recipient as a DOJ High Risk grantee; or termination of an award(s).

32. The subrecipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or
information or data collection requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any
information required for the assessment or evaluation of any activities within this project.

33. Justification of consultant rate

Approval of this award does not indicate approval of any consultant rate in excess of $650 per
day. A detailed justification must be submitted to and approved by the NHDOJ Grants
Management Unit prior to obligation or expenditure of such funds.

34. Recipient understands and agrees that It must submit quarterly performance metrics reports
through BJA's Performance Measurement Tool (PMT) website (https://bjapmi.ojp.gov/). For
more detailed information on reporting and other requirements, refer to BJA's website. Failure to
submit required reports by established deadlines may result in the freezing of grant funds and
High Risk designation.

35. The grantee agrees to comply with the applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38, the
Department of Justice regulation governing "Equal Treatment for Faith Based Organizations"
(the Equal Treatment Regulation"). The Equal Treatment Regulation provides in part that
Department of Justice grant awards of direct funding may not be used to fund any inherently
religious activities, such as worship, religious instruction, or proselyiization. Subrecipients of
direct grants may still engage in inherently religious activities, but such activities must be
separate in time or place from the Department of Justice funded program, and participation in
such activities by individuals receiving services from the grantee or a sub-grantee must be
voluntary. The Equal Treatment Regulation also makes clear that organizations participating in
programs directly funded by the Department of Justice are not permitted to discriminate in the
provision of services on the basis of a beneficiary's religion. Notwithstanding any other special
condition of this award, faith- based organizations may, in some circumstances, consider religion
as a basis for employment. See http://www.ojp.gov/about/ocr/equal fbo.htm.

36. With respect to this award, federal funds may not be used to pay cash compensation (salary plus
bonuses) to any employee of the award subrecipient at a rate that exceeds 110% of the maximum
annual salary payable to a member of the federal government's Senior Executive Service (SES)
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at an agency with a Certified SES Performance Appraisal System for ihat year. (An award
subrecipient may compensate an employee at a higher rate, provided the amount in excess of this
compensation limitation is paid with non-federal funds.)This limitation on compensation rates
allowable under this award may be waived on an individual basis at the discretion of the OJP

official indicated in the program announcement under which this award is made.

37. The subrecipient understands and agrees that no award or matching funds may be used to
provide services for violent offenders as defined in 42 U.S.C. 3797u-2, a "violent offender"
means a person who—(1) is charged with or convicted of an offense that is punishable by a term

of iipprisonnient exceeding one year, during the course of which offense or conduct— (A) the
person carried, possessed, or used a firearm or dangerous weapon; (B) there occurred the death

of or serious bodily injury to any person; or (C) there occurred the use of force against the person
of another, without regard to whether any of the circumstances described in subparagraph (A) or
(B) is an element of the offense or conduct of which or for which the person is charged or
convicted; or (2) has 1 or more prior convictions for a felony crime of violence involving the use
or attempted use of force against a person with the intent to cause death or serious bodily harm.

38. Subrecipient understands and agrees that, to the extent that substance abuse treatment and related

services are funded by this award, they will include needed treatment and services to address

opioid abuse reduction.

39. Regarding medication-assisted treatment (MAT), the award recipient understands and agrees to
the following: 1) all clients in a BJA-funded drug court have a right to access MAT under the
care and prescription of a physician to the extent MAT is clinically indicated; 2) BJA-funded

V drug courts must not deny any eligible client enrollment to the drug court program because of
iheiruse of FDA-approved medications for the treatment of substance abuse; 3) MAT must be

permitted to be continued for as long as the prescribcr determines that the FDA-apprbved
medication is clinically beneficial; 4) while under no circumstances can a BJA-funded drug court
program deny access to MAT under the care and prescription of a physician when it is clinically
indicated, a judge retains judicial discretion to mitigate/reduce the risk of abuse, misuse, or
diversion of these medications; and 5) federal funds shall not be used to support activities that
violate the Controlled Substances Act, 2! U.S.C. §§ 801-904.
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Name and Title of Authorized Representative

Signature Date

/V^ AJoM/ ̂ Vr^ <?oiL^sJcrs
'JD fiinJ>n>M^ e,^. rA^a,rr>(. /if/J

Name and Address of Agency
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EEOP Reporting

Alexandra Hamel. Board President [responsible ojjicial], certify that New Hampshire Alcohol

and Drue Abuse Counselors Association [recipient] has completed the EEO reporting tool

certification form at: https://olp.gov/about/ocr/faQ ccop.htm on 01/22/2020 [Date]

And that Dianne Castrncci; Executive Director [responsible ojdTicial] has completed the EEOP
training at httt?s://oiD.gov/about/ocr/ocr-traininit»'Vidcos/vidco-Qcr~trainintf htm on: 01/22/2020
[date]

I further certify that: New Hampshire Alcohol and Drue Abuse Counselors Association
[recipient] will comply with applicable federal civil rights laws that prohibit discrimination in
employment and in the delivery of services.

Signature: Date: V-
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Non-supplanting Certtfication

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the applicant or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons

other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II,
Chapter 3). http://www.oip.usdoi.gov/financialguide/part2/Dart2chap3.htm.

Supplanting and iob retention

A grantee may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the federal money, would
be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it must be able to
substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be, but is not
limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a county or
municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced when
making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the terminated

positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or local funds.

The NH Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association (Applicant) certifies that any funds

awarded through grant nomber 2Q2QADC02 . shall be used to supplement existing funds

for program activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfcderal funds that have been

appropriated for the purposes and goals of the grant.

The NH Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association (Applicant) understands that

supplanting violations may result in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension

of ftiturc funds under this program, suspension or dcbarment from federal grants, recoupment of

monies provided under this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Name and Title: Alexandra Hamel. Board President

Signaturc:^^yi2^uj^t^/d/^/^go(^^<wy £u4Ct}L'^ Date: -^/ S'-Z d ZO
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

35

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer lo the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they
are required to attest. Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in
the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a material
representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of Justice
("Department") determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

1. LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Applicant certifies
and assures (to the extent applicable) the following:
(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Applicant, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment,.or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b) If the Applicant's request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a memW of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Applicant shall complete and submit Standard Form
- LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency's) instructions; and

(c) The Applicant shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C, § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurcmcnt debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Applicant certifies,

7a-} t\
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with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier "covered transaction as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—
(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction ofjustice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or its principals') present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application. Where the Applicant or any of its principals was
convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal violation
under any Federal law, the Applicant also must disclose such felony criminal conviction in
writing to the Department (for OJP Applicants, to OJP at OjpcompIiancereporting@usdoj.gov;
for OVW Applicants, to OVW at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS
at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov), unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. If the Applicant is a corporation, it certifies cither that (1) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies
have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an
agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or (2) the corporation has
provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or liabilities) to the Department (for OJP
Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Applicants, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application.

.! 0.7A7 6
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4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Dnig-Free Workplace Act of! 988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:
A. The Applicant certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free
workplace by—

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) TheApplicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available dnig counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the tenns of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee's conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute bccuinng in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Progitims,
ATTN: Control Desk, 810 7th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.
Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected award;
(0 Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

/2t^ d ir^'7
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(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance of
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue id maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d). (e), and (f).

If you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

Name and Title of Head of Agency

Signature Date

Name ifhd Address of Agency 3? U6



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Stale of the State of New HampvShire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL

AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business

in New Hampshire on November 26, 1985. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office
have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 89242

Certificate Number: 0004885821

Op
%

s
o

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal-of the State of New Hampshire,

this 7th day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

'• —^—Sara Clgygland do hereby certify that
(Name of Clerk of the Corporation; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk of New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counsetors Association.
(Corporation Name)

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of
the Corporation duly held on January 23. 2020 :

(Date)

RESOLVED; That this Coloration enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting through its
Department of Justice, for the provision of education and trainlrio services.

RESOLVED: That the President Is hereby authorized on behalf of this Corporation to enter
(Title of Contract Signatory)

into the said contract with the State and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments,
and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. Th^iorgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of
the A dav of April. 2Q20.

(D^te Contract Signed)'

4. Alexandra Hamel is the duly elected President of the Corporation.
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

2^^
of(Signature of Clerk of the Corpor^^^

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of

The forgoing Instrument was acknowledged before me this "gCdav of April. 2020.
by Sara Cleveland
(Name of Clerk of Corporation)

A

(NOTARY SE"AL)

Commission Expire

JOHN F. CONNOLLY, Notaiy Public
Stats of New Hampshire

My Commission Expires Febaiary 7,2023

bllc/Justide of the Peace)



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATE(MM«)IWYYYY|

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERfS) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT. If the certificate holder Is art ADDITIONAL INSURED, the po1icy(Je8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an ondorsemant. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementfs)

PRODUCER

Byse Insurance • Laconia

208 Union Avenue

Laconia NH 03246

Loretta Snell

(™I®39-2973- (603)524-0748

ADDRESS: Lorettaghpminsuranco.corn

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC $

INSURER A: Market
INSURED

NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Assoc.

130 Pembroke Road. Suile 100

NH 03301

INSURER B : "iravelcrs Property Casualty Co of America (A/R)

INSURER C :
■

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURERF:

MR
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTlPi'THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

■pOLlcV Iff ■TYPE OF INSURANCE r!rnrwi POLICY NUMBER
PddcV

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILirY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER:

POLICY

OTHER:

LOC

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OED

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNEO
ALfTOS ONLY

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

RETENTION t
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS- LIABILITY
ANY PROPS lETORIPARTNER/eXECUTlVE
OFFTCER/MeMBER EXCLUDED?
(M*nd«tory In NH)
II yes, dtscrtbe krM«r
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS Below

I r n

□

HUP2058-03

6JUB0413N908

(MM/DOTYYYYT

06/30/2019

05/03/2019

{MMIOO/VYYY)

06/30/2020

05AD3/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
UALUOk lOkkMLLI
PREMISES lEa occufTepcwl

MED EXP (Any one per»en)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG
Equip Brkdn Cnls
COMUINEO SINGLE LtfJIT
lEa BCdaenH

BODILY INJURY (Per Dereori)'

BODILY INJURY (Per acddeni)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPerflccWentl

EACH (XCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E,L EACH ACCIDENT

E.L Disease -EA EMPLOYEE

E,L DISEASE • POLCY LIMIT

OesCRIPTTON OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addlllonel Rmvkt Scheduto, may be actaebed It more apace la required)
Work petformod during policy period. Slates for which statutory Workers Compensation is provkJed; NH

1,000,000

100.000

5.000

1.000.000

3,000.000

3,000,000

J  100.000
100,000

500,000

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

NH Dept. of Justice

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELtVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

33 Capitol St.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord
'

NH 03301-6397
1

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
G 1986-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Additional Named Insureds

Ot^er Named Insureds

OBA HHTIAD Doing Business As

OFAPPINF (02/20Q7) " COPYRIGHT 2007, AMS SERVICES INC



ADDITIONAL COVERAGES
Rer# Description

Professional Uability

Limit 1

1.000,000

Limit 2

200.000

Limit 3

Ref# Description

VTAF

Deductible Amount

Coverage Code

PROF

Deductible 1Vp<

Form No. Edition Date

Premium

Coverage Code Form No. Edition Date

Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit 3 Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

$1.00

Ref# Description

TERRORISM

Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit 3

Ref# Description

Expense constant

Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit 3

Ref# Description

Sched Cr Modification

Limit 1 Limit 2

Ref# Description

Catastrophe

Limit 3

Deductible Amount

Coverage Code

TERR

Deductible Type

Form No. Edition Date

Premium

$32.00

Deductible Amount

Coverege Code

EXCNT

Deductible Type

Form No. Edition Dete

Premium

SI 60.00

Deductible Amount

Coverage Code

SCM

Deductible Typo

Form No. Edition Date

Premium

-511.00

Coverage Code

CATAS

Form No. Edition Date

Limit 1 Limit 2

Ref# Description

Limit 1 Umit2

Ref# Description

Limit 1 Limit 2

Ref# Description

Limit 3

Limit 3

Limit 3

Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

$32.00

Deductible Amount

Coverege Code

Deductible Type

Form No. Edition Date

Premium

Deductible Amount Deductible Type

Coverage Code Form No. Edition Date

Premium

Coverage Code Form No. Edition Date

Limit 1 Limit 2

Ref# Description

Limit 1 Limit 2

Limits

Limit 3

Deductible Amount Deductible Type Premium

Deductible Amount Deductible Type

Coverage Code Form No. Edition Date

Premium

Ref# Description

Limit 1 Limit 2 Limit 3 Deductible Amount Deductible Type

Coverage Code Form No. Edition Date

Premium

OFADTLCV /
Copyright 2001, AMS Services, Inc.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; E3CFD1 F5-64F7-4POO-92E8^1514BBFA08D

IKTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE

P. 0. BOX 2508

CINCir^NATI, "oh 45201

EEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Date; SEP 092014

NEVr J^PSHIRB ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

25 COUNTRY CLUB RD STE 604

GILFORD., NH 0324 9

Emplcyer lUenLification. Number:

52-1508299

DLN: \

37053350308003

Contact Person:

CUSTOMER SERVICE ID# 31954

Contact Telephone Number:
{877} 829-5500

Accounting Period Ending:

December 31

Public Charity Stat.vje:
I70(bj(1)(A)(vi)

Form 990 Rcqi'vred;

Yes

Effective Date of Exemption:
December 11, 201.3

Contribution Deductibility:

Yes-

Addendum Applies:

Yes

Dear Applicant:

We are pleased to inform you that, upon review of your application for tax
exempt status we have determined that you are exempt from Federal income tax
under section 501(c)(3) of Che Internal Revenue Code. Contributions to you are
deductible under section 170 of the Code. You are also qualified to receive
tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under section 2055, 2106
or 2522 of the Code. Because this letter could help resolve any questions
regarding your exempt status, you should keep it in your permanent records.

Organizations exempt under section .503(c)(3) of die Code are further classified
as either public charities or private foundations. We determined that you are
a public charity under the Code seccionis) listed in the heading of this
letter.

for important information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt
organization, go to www.irs.gov/charities. Enter M221-FC" in the search bar
to view Publication 4221-PC. Compliance Guide for 501(c)(3) Public Charities,
which describes your recordkeeping, reporting, and disclosure requirements.

Sincerely,

Director, Exempt Organizations

Letter 947



DocuSign Envelop© ID: EXFD1F5^F7-4FDD-92E8-Ot514BBFA08D
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ADDENDUM

Baaed on the information submitted with your application, we approved your
request for reinstatement under Revenue Procedure 2014-11. Your effective date
of exemj5tion, aa ahown in the heading of this letter, is retroactive to the
date of revocation.

Letter 947



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
CHAMTABLE TRUSTS DIVISION

CERTIFICATE OF REGTSTRATTON

NH ALCOHOL & DRUG ABUSE
COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

CONCORD, NH

is registered as a charitable trust with the Department of the Attorney General, Division of Charitable Trusts
pursuant to Chapter 7 Section 19 of the Revised Statutes Annotated of the State of New Hampshire.

Date of Issuance: December 16, 2014 Registratj^i>^ber: 1744Jf

Joseph A. Foster r

Attorney General /^Tcny M. Knowics
Assistant Director of Charitable Trusts

REGISTRATION IS ISSUED TO CHARITABLE TRUSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITH RSA 7 19 RELATIVF
TO REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS. CHARITABLE TRUSTS MUST AI.SO COMPLY WITH PERIODIC REPORTING REOHIRFMFNTS
AND OTHER LAWS. CURRENT INFORMATION MAY BE OBTAINED FROM THE REGISTER REPORTING REQUIREMENTS



JOB DESCRIPTION
Executive Director, NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association

The Execulive Director is the Chief Executive Officer of New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug
Abuse Counselors Association. The Executive Director reports to the Board of Directors, and is
responsible for the organization's consistent achievement of its mission and financial obj ectives,
lliis position provides leadership and direction in the development and delivery of all activities.

Goals & Objectives:
1 he overall goals of the Executive Director ai'e to:
•  Ensure the organizational operations and activities are provided in the highest quality

manner within the fiscal and human resource limitations of the organization.
•  Ensure the fiscal integrity and stability of the organization.
•  Staff the day-to-day operations of the organization.
•  Provide leadership to staff and volunteers to effectively carry out their assigned

responsibilities.
•  Serve as a spokesperson for the organization in public settings, consistent with the

mission, policies, and activities of the organization.

Specific Duties:

The following responsibilities are the principal ways the Executive Director acts to assist
NHADACA in executing its mission. The Executive Director shall;
•  Implement and manage the strategic vision of the organization.
•  Be accountable to the Board of Directors for the financial operation of the organization;

prepare and manage an annual budget for the Board's acceptance and approval; and be
responsible for securing and managing adequate funding to support organizational operations
through diverse sources such as contracts, grants, and donations.

•  Staff and provide guidance and needed leadership to the Board of Directors and its
comnuttee.s in the development of the policies and activities in accordance with the mission
and strategic vision of the organization.

•  Be responsible for administering and managing all grants, contracts, and agreements and
mfonning the Board of Directors of these and other commitments that involve the utilization
of agency operational and financial resources and/or staff and volunteer time.

•  Promote good public relationships ensuring that the organization's mission, goals and
objectives are understood by key stakeholders and partners.

•  Establish and maintain positive working relationships with foundations, businesses,
government officials, and other non-profits.

•  Establish a system for evaluating staffJob performance and ensure that it is implemented and
maintained

•  Be accountable to the Board of Directors for assuring that membership of the organization is
encouraged and supported.

• Assure that appropriate and efficient organizational policies and procedures in all operational
domains arc developed, implemented and maintained.

May 2012



• Administer and manage the day-to-day operations of the organization.
• Other duties as necessary to assure the success of the organization.

Qualiflcations:

• Masters degree in addictions counseling, social work, psychology, nonprofit
administration, or related field.

• Demonstrated experience in working effectively with a nonprofit Board of Directors.
• Minimum of 5 years of experience in nonprofit and/or program administration including

supervision of personnel.
• Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with others, to express

ideas clearly and concisely in written and oral form.
• Experience in the development and coordination of grants, contracts and fundraising.
• Demonstrated experience in budget development and management.
•  Identified leadership, interest, and passion for supporting the addictions profession.

Last Updated May 2012

May 2012



DIANNE PEPIN CASTRUCCI, MEd., MLADC

LICENSURE

EDUCATION

EXPERIENCE

Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor

Master of Education Degree. May 1993
Concentration: Counselor Education; Human Services
Bachelor of Science Degree. May 1989
Major: Elementary Education Minors: Psychology and Human Services
Plymouth State College, Plymouth, N.H,

Executive Director. NH Ajcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association, Concord, ■
N.H.— June 2012 - Present •

Promoted to Executive Director in June 2012, the Chief Executive Officer of
NHADACA reports to the Board of Directors, provides leadership and direction in
the development and delivery of all activities and is responsible for the
organization's consistent achievement of its mission and financial objectives.
•  ensures the organizational operations and activities are provided in the highest

quality manner within the fiscal and human resource limitations of the
organization.

•  administers and manages all grants, contracts, and agreements and informs the
Board of Directors of these and other commitments that involve the utilization
of agency operational and financial resources and/or staff and volunteer time.

•  ensures the fiscal Integrity and stability of the organization.
•  staffs the day-to-day operations of the organization providing leadership to staff

and volunteers to effectively carry out their assigned responsibilities.
•  serves as a spokesperson for the organization in public settings, consistent with

the mission, policies, and activities of the organization.

Training'Institute Director. NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association/ NH
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders, Gilford, N.H. — February 2004 - June
2012

Coordinates logistics of workforce development opportunities for substance abuse
prevention, intervention and treatment professionals throughout New Hampshire.
• consults with treatment and prevention professionals to identify specific training

topic needs and local or regional trainers with expertise on that topic.
• collaborates with co-sponsors for various events.
• contacts trainers, contracts their services and coordinates travel arrangements
• markets and advertises events by creating electronic/email flyers and printed

brochures and submits events for Inclusion in training publications.
• maintains participant database including attendance, tuition and CEli

information.

• coordinates functions associated with presenting major conference and training
workshops of various sizes, and at various locations, statewide.
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Adiniiiislrdtor to the Board. NH Board of Licensing for Alcohol & Other Drug Use
Professionals, Concord, N.H.— September 20II - March 2012'
Write Board correspondence, create agenda for and keep minutes at Board meetings,
organize professional packets for review, maintain databases, arrange and order
testing, database auditing, other administrative functions as assigned by the
chairperson of the board.

Masters Licensed Alcohol & Druii Abuse Outpatient Counselor. Horizons
Counseling Center, Gilford, N.H. — January 2006 - May 2013
Provide substance abuse services related to evaluation and group treatment
to individuals in an outpatient setting and facilitate various psycho-educational
groups including Project ADAPT to be held at, and in coordination, with the
Belknap County DcparUnent of Corrections.

Exit Counselor. Community Alcohol Information Program, Inc., Boscawen, Nashua
and Laconia, N.H. — July 2003 - November 2005
Conduct exit interviews for clients at the completion of the CAIP, Impaired Driver
Intervention Program for DWT first offenders. Attended PRI training October 2003.
• diagnosed, and referred as appropriate, DWI first offenders for alcohol

dependence and/or alcohol abuse upon file review and structured exit interview.

Licensed Alcohol & Drue Abuse Outpatient Counselor. James Foster & Associates,
Manchester, N.H. — October 2003 - July 2004
Provide substance abuse ser\'ices related to evaluation and brief treatment
of individuals in an outpatient setting.

Corrections Counselor/Case Manager. NH Department of Corrections. Lakes
Region Facility, Laconia, N.H. — December 1998 - February 2004
Providing clinical services of inmates participating in a modified therapeutic

communit>' treatment program (Summit House/Level 3 Substance Abuse
Services).

• chaired and participated on, professional development committees to determine
staff training needs and involvement, VOITIS grant fund use, as well as planning
and coordination of multiple substance abuse training events for DOC staff.

•  supervised inmates in lectures, clinical groups, community meetings, clinical
staffing, individual counseling sessions and other clinical groiip activities.

• prepared/maintained clinical charts including evaluations, discharge summaries,
treatment transfer information for parole and affercare recommendations.

•  impacted the direction/implementation and planning of treatment services
available to inmates incarcerated at the Lakes Region Facility.

Antioch New England Admnct Faculty. Summit House Program, Lakes Region
Facility, Laconia, N.H. — May 2000 - May 2002
Field supervise and train graduate interns from the Antioch Graduate School ofNew
England in methods and practice of substance abuse counseling.
•  interview, accept or deny, teachyirain and supervise master's level interns.
• communicate with professional seminar leaders.
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Substance Abuse Counselor. N.H. Bureau of Substance Abuse Services,
Multiple Offender Program, Laconia, N.H. — December 1993 - December 1998
Working as a clinical team member providing assessment, education and
intervention services to individuals convicted of multiple DWIs.
• conducted intake/orientation, ediication, individual and group counseling,

evaluation and assessment services relevant to client's substance use, medical,
psychological, legal and social history.

•  represented the program at official hearings of the Dept. of Motor Vehicles.

Independent Contraclor/Counseior. NH Department of Corrections, First Step
Program, Lakes Region Facility. Uconia.N.H.— July 1997 - September 1997
Facilitated the substance abuse/psycho-educational group component to NH State
Prison inmates participating in the First Step Program. The course involved
providing 25-28 male inmates intervention services, 3 hours per week for 8 weeks.'
• created curriculum including lesson outlines and client handouts.
•  facilitated psycho-educational course on substance abuse related issues with

difficult offender population.

Shelter Manager. Task Force Against Domestic and Sexual Violence,
Plymouth, N.H.— February 1992 - December 1993
Completed 40 hour crisis training for Task Force volunteer crisis-line and was hired
as the Shelter Manager four months later.
• communicated with DCVS/DCYF on crisis-related issues.

• supported women in crisis at Plymouth Area Court sessions.
• coordinated/managed building functions, including monitoring clients, intakes,

•general maintenance, food pantiy and emergency supplies.
• presented training workshops on shelter regulations and procedures.

Editorial As.sistant. Office of News Services, Plymouth State College,
Plymouth, N.H. — August 1989 - November 1993
Associated with this office for four years starting as Admini'strative Secretary then
promoted to Editorial Assistant.

• produced internal and external desktop publications.
• created weekly and montiily events calendars to market college events.
• wrote and distributed news releases concerning student success.
• hired and supervised student office assistants.
• created purchasing documents for supplies and services.
• utilized and maintained extensive computer databases.
•  submitted listings of college events to newspapers for publication.

Other Activities

NH Governor's Commission Treatment Task Force 2018-Present
Legislative Commission on Primary Care Workforce Issues 2018-Present
NH LADC Board Peer Review Committee April 2013- March 2019
Associate Member of the Blearning Guild October 2012-2014
Member of National Association of Forensics Counselors 2002-2012



JOB DESCRIPTION

Training Director, NH Atcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association

Renuirements

• Masters degree in business/marketing or human services field preferred.
•  Minimum of 5 years experience in training implementation and/or the substance use

profession.
•  Conversant in the areas of substance use prevention, treatment and recovery.
•  Ability to read and understand basic subcontractycontract agreements witit funders
• Demonstrated leadership skills and ability to work independently.
•  Supervisory skills including the ability to assign work, evaluate work and discuss work

perfontiance with supervisees.
•  Strong administrative, facilitation and organizational skills.
•  Computer skills sufficient to assist with website maintenance, oversee/conduct webinars

using Adpbe Connect, data entry/Access database and event/membership management
systems.

•  Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with other staff, funders,
other agencies and the general public.

•  Ability to meet light to medium physical demands of training set-up to include moving
chairs and tables, liglit cleaning, taking out garbage and carrying training equipment and
materials.

•  Driver's license and personal vehicle to implement trainings happening outside of
Concord, NH

Full-time position for I raining Director of substance use and ancillary professionals. The
coordinator works with the Executive Director, other training staff and funders/stakeholders to
identify training needs for the profession/community of ancillary professionais and set up and
implement series of training events for various contracts and grants.

Duties

•  Support the general functions of the NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association
(NHADACA) as a whole and the specific functions of the NH Training Institute on
Addictive Disorders (NflTIAD)

•  Set up and implement training events within contract budget guidelines
•  Contract reporting and representing the agency in relation to training activities.
•  Along with Executive Director, super\'ise, evaluate, and assign work to training staff in

support of training implementation - assisting when needed to complete the tasks:
o Perform training related activities processing registrations and payments,

preparing CE applications, and maintaining databases
o Contact, contract with and arrange for trainers for planned training events,
o Disseminate electronic information and published flyers regarding training

events. .

o Assi.st in the maintenance of a web site.

•  Administrative and other duties as assigned by the Executive Director and the Board of
Directors of NHADACA

l.ast Updated February 2020

Feb 2020



JOB DESCRIPTION

Training Associate, NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association

Fulltime position for training associate with a training institute for addictions professionals. The
associate works with the Training Director, Training Coordinator, Training Assistants, Executive
Director and other NHTIAD staff at the Nl-1 Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association to
assist in registration, maintaining databases and the implementation of a series of training events.

Requircntenls

•  Bachelor's degree in a human services or business management-related field preferred.
• Minimum of 3 years experience in varied experience in training implementation. ,
'• Ability to work independentlyj
•  Strong communication skills.

•  Computer skills sufficient to assist with maintenance of webinar platforms, meeting
management software, MS Access and MS Excel databases and as well as to provide
technical support at training events. Fajniliarit>' with Zoom and Adobe Connect helpful.

•  Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with other agencies and.
the general public.

•  Organizational skills sufficient to assist in the coordination of annual conferences such as
the NH Behavioral Health Summit

•  Flexibility to trayel to support regional conferences such as the AdCare Educational
Institute ofNew England

•  Ability to meet light to medium physical demands of training set-up to include moving
chairs and tables, light cleaning/trash removal and carrying training equipment and
materials.

Duties

Support the general functions of the Training Institute as a whole
Perform training related activities such as data entry, preparing and sending invoices and
accounts receivable.

Assist with pre & post event activities as requested such as registration and payment
entry, certificate process management, evaluation summary preparation.
Support functions needed to implement regularly scheduled training events such as
preparing participant materials, assisting with participant registration, equipment and
room set-up and presenter support.
Coordinate use of conference rooms when rented by other entities
Planning & Coordination activities for Behavioral Health Summit
Travel to regional conferences to provide logistical support to the AdCare Educational
Institute of New England
Review and reply to correspondence and perform public relations duties, such as
attendance and representation at exhibit tables for various workforce development events
Miscellaneous tasks with other staff that may include cleaning, answering phones,
opening mail and answering emails
Other duties as assigned by the Executive Director, Training Director, Training
Coordinator and the Board of Directors of NHADACA

Salai7 Range

$16-$18 per hour commensurate witJi experience

July 2019



Alyssa M. Demers

EDUCATION:

NHTI- Concord, NH 2007-2008

Information technology- completed several courses

Lakes Region Community College-Laconia, NH 2011-2017
Associates in Human Services and an Associate's degree In Automotive Technology.
Southern New Hampshire University- Manchester, NH 2017-2019

Bachelor's degree in Psychology with a concentration In Addiction Counseling. March 2019.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association, Concord, NH
Training Associate 1/2019-Current
•  Completed work of a training coordinator from 1/2019-3/2019 ̂
•  Enter participants into Access database.

• Contract with trainers to conduct webinars.

• Maintain the agency website.

•  Prepare CE applications for webinars.
Training Assistant 12/2016-12/2018

•  Enter participants Into Access database.

•  Contract with trainers to conduct webinars.

• Maintain the agency website.

•  Prepare CE applications for webinars.

Student Office Assistant 9/2015-12/2016
•  Enter participants into Access database.

• Assist clients by answering the phone.
•  Receive payments for trainings by cash, check, credit card, vouchers, or automatic

debits.

Walmart, Concord, NH
Cashier 9/2013-10/2017

•  Processed merchandise returns and exchanges.
• Maintained a clean store.

•  Received payments by cash, check, credit card, vouchers, or automatic debits
•  Provided excellent customer service



JOB DESCRIPTIGN
Administrative Assistant, NH ̂cohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association (NHADACA)

Part-time position for administrative assistant at a membership association for addictions
professionals. The assistant works with the Executive Director, other NHADACA staff and
NHADACA board of directors to provide accurate reports/accounting of NHADACA finances,
reporting of meeting minutes and circulating information to.association membership.

Requirements

•  Bachelors degree in a human services or business management-related field preferred.
• Minimum of 3 years experience in varied office work including experience in

Quickbooks and general accounting.
• Ability to work independently.

•  Strong communication skills.
•  Computer skills sufficient to use MS Office applications, Quickbooks*, Constant

Contact, Survey Monkey, and Zoom.
• Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with other agencies and

the general public.
•  Ability to meet light to medium physical demands of occasional training set-up to include

moving chairs and tables, light cleaning/trash removal and carrying training equipment
and materials.

Duties

Manage/Assist with memberehip related communication (letters/mailings, membership
lists, tracking of expiration dales, and related emails).
Assist with updating policies, manuals, succession plan, and other reports that may
impact NHADACA policy. .
Support the general functions of the Executive Director and NHADACA as a whole
Perform administrative related activities such as answering phones, Paypal reconciliation,
memos, invoices and similar accoimts payable & receivable functions, writing and
maintaining meeting minutes, general correspondence, tracking regional membership,
maintaining databases and some financial reporting.
Occasional support functions needed to implement regularly scheduled training events
such as assisting with participant registration, cleaning, equipment and room set-up and
clean-up.

Complete contract compliance reports as well as assist Executive Director with various
reports for auditing purposes.
Assist in the maintenance of websites, calendars and updating website documentation.
Other duties as assigned by the Executive Director and the Board of Directors of
NHADACA

* There may some minor accounting with Quickbooks, however at this time most
Quickbooks and accounts payable/receivable functions are being done by the
Executive Director with a subcontractor.

Updated 12/1 1/19



Stephanie L Bean

SUMMARY: Seeking a team-based environment that can utilite my skill set to contribute to the goals of the
organization.

EDUCATION: New Hampshire Community Technical College
Liberal Arts, Business

May 2008

EXPERIENCED

New Har^ipshire Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Assoclatioa Concord NH
Administrative Assistant

•  Keeps track of all money coming to the organization'and bank deposits
•  Organizes and tracks all of the scholarships
•  Reconciles the PayPal account each month
• Answers phones and assigns emails to appropriate staff
•  Trainer outreach and sending evaluation summaries

AutoServ oflilton, Tilton, NH
Business Development Center Representative

• Answers all internet and phone inquiries for the dealership.
•  Sends email responses and photos.
•  Set appointments for customers to test drive.
• Works on a team

Brewster Academy, Wolfeboro, NH
Assistant to the CFO

January 2020- Current

March 2017- July 2019

October 2016 - iyiarch 2017

Assisted in all administrative duties for the business office including tuition and student debit

Servpro of Concord, Concord, NH
Office Manager

accounts.

June 2012-June.20l6

Used a range of office software, including emaii, QuickBooks, spreadsheets and databases.
Process and manages payroll for the company weekly.
Manage jobs files from Initial phone to final billing.
Develop and implemented new processes for Inter office communication.
Manage and audit all files for specific insurance company protocols.
Maintain the overall condition of the office and organized meetings with staff.
Oversee the recruitment of new staff, including training and induction
Ensure adequate staff levels to cover for absences and peaks In workload, often by using third party agencies.



Delegate work to staff and managed their workload and output levels.
Promote continuing staff development and training.

Respond to customer enquiries and complaints.

Servpro of the Seacoast, Dover, NH
Assistant Project Manager

Provided excellent organizational and time management skills.
Excelled in flexibility and adaptability to changing workloads.
Able to prioritize tasks and work under pressure.

Used to liaise well with others and delegate tasks.
Used strong oral and written communication with clients and coworkers.
Gave much attention to detail.

Maintained problem-solving skills and project management assists.

TECHNICAL SKILL5: Proficient in Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint and QuickBooks



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Justice

Contractor Name: NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association

Name of Program:
Drug Court Assessment, Training and Technical
Assistance Program (DCATT)

BUDGET PERIOD: SPY 2021
j

i. .. .
NAME. JOBiTITLE. SALARY

PERCENT) PAID

FRbMTHlS
CONTRACT'

' AMO.UKT l?A)pj
EROM.THIS

CONTRACT .
Dianne Castrucci Executive Director $S4,966 8.75% ■  -$7,'435
Alyssa Demers Training Associate $38,938 9.50% $3,699'
Stephanie Bean Administrative Assistant $41,600 7.00% $2,912
Alexandra Hamel President $0 0.00% ;  $0
Linda Brewer President Elect $0 0.00% $0'

$0.
TOTAL SALARIES $14,046

BUDGET PERIOD: " " SFY2022

NAME JOB TITLE. SALARY.

l>^ltCENr PAID)
FROM THIS.

CONTRACT

AMDUNT PAiD>

FROM THIS

;  CONTRACT
Dianne Castrucci Executive Director $87,517 5.50% $4.81,3
vacant Training Director $64,000 6.25% $4,000
Alyssa Demers Training Associate $39,720 9.50% $3,773
Stephanie Bean Administrative Assistant $41,600 4.00% $1',664
Linda Brewer President $0 .  0.00% $0

$0
TOTAL SALARIES $14;25i;

rt "



NHADACA Board List January 2020

Member Board Position Business Address Business Phone

Linda Brewer President Elect State ofNH EAP

129 Pleasant Street, .

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-8947

603-393-6292

Christopher

Foster

At Large

Representative

Corporate Office

Amatus Health

10019 Reisterstown Rd ft301,

Owings Mills, MO 21117

(410) 469-8889

Diana Gibbs At Large

Representative

North Country Health

Consortium

262 Cottage St, Ste 230

Littleton. NH 03561

603-259-4871

603-259-3700 .

x222

Christine

McKenna.

Seacoast

Representative

133 Epping Road, Unit 8

Exeter, NH 03833

603- 828-7783

Alexandra

Hamel

President Keystone Hail

615 Amherst St,

Nashua, NH 03063

603-816-3105

Doreen Boutin Southern

Representative

Farnum Center

140 Queen City Ave

Manchester, NH 03103

603-263-3610

Angela Jones North Country

Representative

PO Box 445

Franconia, NH 03580

603-616-2019

William Keating At Large

Representative

Seacoast Mental Health Ctr

1145 Sagamore Avenue

Portsmouth, NH 03801

603-828-7783

Meredith

Senter

Central

Representative

Catholic Medical Center

8100 McGregor St.

Manchester, NH 03102

603-663-8072

vacant Connecticut

Valley

Representative

Kelly Luedtke Immediate Past

President

NHTI Concord's Community

College

31 College Dr.

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-6484

ext. 4174

Lindsey

Ducharme

Treasurer Horizons Counseling Center

25 Country. Club Rd, Ste 705

Gilford, NH 03249

603-524-8005

Diane Fontneau Student

Representative

Seacoast Mental Health Ctr

1145 Sagamore Avenue

■ Portsmouth, NH 03801

603-957-5825

Suzanne Thistle Lakes Region

Representative

PO Box 251

Bristol, NH. 03222
603-630-3852

Sara Cleveland Secretary NH Bureau of Drug & Alcohol

Services

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-6738



GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Subrecipient hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identification and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address

33 Capitol St. Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Subrecipient Name

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

1.4. Subrecipient Address

44 Farnsworth St., Boston, MA 02210

1.5 Subrecipient Phone U

603-573-3300

1.6. Account Number

1067-072-500575

1.7. Completion Date

9/30/2022

1.8. Grant Limitation

$

393,440

1.9. Grant Officer for Stale Agency

KalliltJbii B. Cair

.1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-1234

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,''
including if applicable RSA3l:95-b."
1.11. Subrecipient Signature 1.12. Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 1

Katharine Robert, Regional Director

Subrecipient Signature 2 If Applicable Narne & Title of Subrecipient Signor 2 If Applicable

1.13. Acknowledgment: State of New Hampshire, County of Merrimack, on 4/10/20, before the undersigned officer,
personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12., known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose
name is signed in block 1.11., and acknowledged that he/she executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

1.13.1. Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

(Seal)

,.13.2. Name & Title of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Debra L. Love. Notary Public , Commission ends on September 5,2023

1.14. State Agency Signature(s) 1.15. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

! .16. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By;.^— // . /) y / ^ Assistant Attorney General, On: /  /

04/13/2020

1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: /  /

2.SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting through the Agency
identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Subrecipient identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as
"the Subrecipient"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").

Rev. 9/2015 PagclofO " Subrecipient Initial(s):

Date: 4/10/20



4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7,r.

7.2.

S.I.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

.9.1.

ARl-A CQVERl-D. Except as othcwisc specifically provided for herein, the 9.2.
Subrccipicnt shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the Stale of New
Hampshire.
EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become 9.3.
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.17), or upon 9.4. •
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 Clhc effective date").
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all
reports required by this Agreanent, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to
the date in block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT. 9.5.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT B.
attached hereto. 10. "

The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT B.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as detennined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Subrccipient the Grant Amount. 'Hie State shall withhold from the amount
otherwise payable to the Subrccipient under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums •
required, or pennilted, to be withheld pursu.mt to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the
complete payment to the Subrccipicnt for all expenses, of whatever nature, 11.
incurred by the Subrccipient in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, 11.1.
and the complete, compensation to the Subrecipient for the Project. The State
shall have no liabilities to the Subrccipient other than the Grant Amount.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and 11.1.1
notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all 11.1.2
payments authorised, or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation 11.1.3
set forth in block 1.8 of these general provisions. 11.1.4
COMPLIANCE BY SUBRECIPIENT WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. 11.2.

In connection with the performance of the Project, the Subrecipient shall comply
with all statutes, bws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or 11.2.1
municipal authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the
Subrccipicnt, including the acquisition of any and all ncccssars' permits.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date atxl the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date the Subrccipient shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in 1 1.2.2
connection with the Project, including, but not limited to, costs of
administration, transportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials
and services. Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and
other similar documents.

Between the Effective Date ainl the dale three (3) years after the Completion
Date, at any time during the Subrecipicnt's normal business houra, and as often 11.2.3
as the Stale shall demand, the Subrecipient shall make available to the Stale all
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Subrccipient shall 1 1.2.4
permit the State to audit, examine, and repnxluce such records, and to make
audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data 12.
(as that term is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters 12.1.
covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph. "Subrecipient" includes
all persons, natural or fictional, alTiliated with, controlled by, or under common
ownership with, the entity identified as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these
provisions
PERSONNEL.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to 12.2.
perform the Project. The Subrccipicnt warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform such Proj^t, and shall be properly licensed
and authorized to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Subrccipient shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, 12.3.
subgrantce, or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a
combined effort to perfonn the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual
relationship with the State, or who is a Stale ofltcer or employee, elected or
appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the reprcsenuitivc of the State hereunder. In the event 12.4.
of any dispute hereunder, the intcr])rctation of this Agreement by the Grant
Oftlccr, and his/her decision on anv dispute, shall be final.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATAi'aCCESS.
As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and 13.
things developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or

. developed by reason of. this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies,
reports, files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrccipient shall
grant to the State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data
for examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any
other purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to cop>Tight in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and after the Effective Date all daut, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the Slate, and shall be retumed to the
State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including. .
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued aj^ropriation of funds, and in no event shall the
Sutte be liable for any payments hereunder in exccs.s of such available or
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become
available, if ever, and slmll have the right to tcnninate this Agreement

immediately upon giving the Subrecipient notice of such termination.
EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Subrecipient shall
constitute an event of default hereunder. (hereinafter referred to as "Events of
Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or
Failure to maintain, or pcnnit access to, the records required hereunder, or
Failure to perfonn any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or
more, or all, of the following actions:
Give the Subrccipicnt a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser
specification of time, thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the
Event of Default is not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Subrecipient notice of termination; and
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the
portion of the Grant Amoimt which would otherwise accrue to the Subrccipicnt
during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
detennines that the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid to the Subrecipicnt;'and
Set off against any other obligation the State may owe to the Subrccipient any
damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default: and
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at bw or in
equity, or both.
TERMINATION.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Subrecipient shall deliver to the Grant Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of
termination.

In the evait of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termiriation Report by the State shall entitle
the Subrccipicnt to -receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and
including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraf^s 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisioris, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Subrecipient from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Subrccipient's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreanent to the contrary, either the State or.
except where notice default has been given to the Subrecipient hereunder, the
Subrecipient, may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days
written notice.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the
Subrccipient. and no rcprcscnuilivc. officer or employee of the State of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or localities in which the
Project is to be performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the
review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall
participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which alTects his or her
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15.

16.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

19.

20,

personal intcrcsi or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association 17.2.
in which he or she is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the
proceeds thereof.
SUBRECIPIENT-S RELATION TO Till- STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Subrccipicnt, its employees, and any subcontractor or
subgrantcc of the Subrccipicnt are in all respects independent contractors, and 18.
arc neither agents nor employees of the State. Neither the Subrccipienl nor any
of its ofilcers, employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees,
shall have authority to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits,
workmen's compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its
employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrccipienl shall not assign,
or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without tlie
prior written consent of the Slate.
INDEMNIFICATION. The Subrccipicnt shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the State, its oiTiccrs and employees, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the Slate, its otTiccrs and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its ofilcers and employees, by
or on behalf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out 21.
of (or which may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgitmtce or other agent of the Subrccipicnt.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of
this agreement. 22.
INSURANCE AND BOND.

The Subrccipicnt shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or 23.
shall require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project
work to obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the
following insurance:
Statutory workmen's compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and
Comprehensive public liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or property damage, in amounts not less than S1,000,000 per occurrence
and $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and
$500,000 for property damage in any one incident; and

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the
standard form employed in the State of New I lompshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or
modification of the policy c.irlier than ten (10) days af\cr written notice thereof
has been received by the State.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions
hereof after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event
of Default shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of
waiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all
of the provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the
Subrecipient.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be dcetned to
have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail,
postage prepaid, in a United States Post Ofllce addressed to the panics at the
addresses first above given.
AMENDMENT. • This Agreement may be amended, wjiivcd or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the panics hereto and only after approval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing Suite Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. Tliis Agreement shall be'
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the panies and their respective
successors and assignees, 'fhe captions and contents of the "subject" blank are
used only as a matter of convenience, and arc not to be considered a port of this
Agreement or to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional provisions set forth in E.xhibit C
hereto arc incorporated as part of this agreement.

Rev. 9/2015 Page 3 of 6 Subrccipicnt Initial(s):

Date:
4/10/20



EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. as Subrecipient shall receive a grant from

the New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for expenses incurred for support in

providing assessment, training and technical assistance to further enhance the NH Drug

Court Program.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures

described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for

reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting fonn as provided.

Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days

following the end of the cun'ent quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later

than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of

compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January I, the first quarterly

report is due on April 15'^ or 15 days after the close of thefirst quarter ending on March
.31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both

state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this

office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting

documentation should be maintained for at least 5 years after the close of the project.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such

desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt

shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 0330!

603-271-8091 orTravis.Teeboom@doj.nh.gov
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EXHIBIT B

-SCHEDULE/TERMS OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure

reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's

approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account

receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in the Grant Agreement, Sections 1.8.

3a.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $393,440 of the

total Grant Limitation upon Governor and Executive Council approval to

9/30/2022, with approved expenditure reports. This shall be contingent on

continued federal funding and program performance.

i.. With sufficient reason, the Subrecipient may request an extension of the

grant period to 9/30/2023. The Subrecipient must submit the request in
writing. No extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ and the

Bureau of the Justice Assistance in writing.

ii. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or

costs incuiTcd under this agreement prior to Governor and Executive

Council approval, nor after 9/30/2022, or 9/30/23 if extension is granted.
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

Subrecipient shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and

specifications detailed in the Adult Drug Court Discretionary Grant Rules and Special

Conditions as Exhibit C, which is subject to annual review.
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Exhibit C

ADULT DRUG COURT DISCRETIONARY GRANT

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Grant # 20i9-DC-BX-0017

1. Requirements of the award: remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any

assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the subrecipient that relate to conduct

during the period of performance also is a material requirement of this award. By signing and

accepting this award on behalf of the subrecipient, the authorized subrecipient official accepts all

material requirements of the award, and specifically adopts all such assurances or certifications

as if personally executed by the authorized subrecipient official.

Failure to comply with any one or more of these award requirements whether a condition set out

in full below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification

related to conduct during the award period may result in the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP")

taking appropriate action with respect to the subrecipient and the award. Among other things, the

OJP may withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. The U.S.

Department of Justice ("DOJ"), including OJP or the NH Dept. of Justice ("NHDOJ") also may

take other legal action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this

award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution

(including under 18 U.S.C. lOOl and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead

to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise
(including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

/

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its

terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the
maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held, instead, that the provision is utterly invalid

or unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this award.

2. Applicabilitv of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R.

Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200

Uniform Requirements") apply to this FY 2019 award from OJP.

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26, 2014. If this

FY 2019 award supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under the same award number

(e.g., funds awarded during or before December 2014), the Part 200 Uniform Requirements

1
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Exhibit C

apply with respect to all funds under that award number (regardless of the award date, and

regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental award) that are obligated

on or after the acceptance date of this F Y 2019 award.

For rnore information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP

awards and subawards ("subgrants"), see,the OJP website at

https://ojp.gOv/funding/Part200UniformRequirements.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any

subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier) must retain — typically for a period of 3 years from the
date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF 425), unless a different retention period

applies and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier) must provide

access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial records,

supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R.

200.333.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or

distributed by OJP that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the provisions of

the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the subrecipient is to contact the NHDOJ Grants

Management Unit promptly for clarification.

3. Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted

on the OJP website (currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial.Guide" available at

https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any updated version that may be posted

during the period of performance. The subrecipient agrees to comply with the DOJ Grants

Financial Guide.

4. Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September 1, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere ip the U.S.

Code were editorially reclassified (that is, moved and renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled

"Crime Control and Law Enforcement." The reclassification encompassed a number of statutory

provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and cooperative agreements), including

many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision

that has been reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference to that

statutory provision as reclassified to Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes
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Exhibit C

references set out in award conditions, references set out in material incorporated by reference

through award conditions, and references set out in other award requirements.

5. Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate

A subfecipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law

to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to use

the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must advise the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit "in writing
of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the

Part 200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total

direct costs (MTDC) as defined by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

6. Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the subrecipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the subrecipient

receives any other award of federal funds during the period of perfomiance for this award, the

subrecipient promptly must determine whether funds from any of those other federal awards

have been, are being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical cost

items for which funds are provided under this award. If so, the subrecipient must promptly

notify the NHDOJ Grant Management Unit in writing of the potential duplication, and, if so

requested by the NHDOJ, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope.

7. Requirements related to Svstem for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements

The subrecipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award

Management (SAM), currently accessible at https://www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable

requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as maintaining the currency of

information in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to first-

tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do

not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the unique entity identifier required for SAM

registration.

The details of the subrecipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are

posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition:

System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal Identifier Requirements), and are

incorporated by reference here.

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural

person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or

operate in his or her name).
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Exhibit C

Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any siibrecipient at any tier) must

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is

or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any subrecipient)

properly verifies the employment eligibility of the individual who is being hired, consistent

with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2).

B. Notify all persons associated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who are or will be

involved in activities under this award of both—

(1) This award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2) that, generally speaking, make.

it unlawful, in the United States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be

notified of the award requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the

associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. i324a (a) (I) and (2).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform

Requirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to

compliance with this award condition in accordance with Form 1-9 record retention

requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring

I

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with

this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds

may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to

ensure compliance with this condition.
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4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in the. hiring process

For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this

award" specifically includes (without limitation) any and all recipient (or any subrecipient)

officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the hiring process with respect to a

position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of

employment eligibility, the recipient (or any subrecipient) mav choose to participate in, and

use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate person authorized to act on

behalf of the recipient (or subrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify

procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final -

Nonconfirmation") to confirm employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the

United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the

Virgin Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana

Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any

subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including

any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.8., shall be understood to relieve any

recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation

otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. i324a (a) (I) and (2).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify visit

the E-Verify website (https;//www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-
Verify employer agents can email E- Verify at E-VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award

acceptance.
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Exhibit C

9. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach oF personally identifiable information CPU)

The recipient (and any "subrecipient" at any tier) must have written procedures in place to

respond in the event of an actual or imminent "breach" (0MB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient) -

- (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of

"personally identifiable information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.79) within the scope of an OJP grant-

funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (0MB
Circular A-130).

. In the event of an actual, or imminent, breach of Personally Identifiable Information of a U.S

Department of Justice funded program or activity by a subrecipient, the subrecipient must have a
procedure in place that indicates that the Grants Management Unit will be notified of the breach

by the end of the business day (4:00 p.m. EST) that the breach was reported. An e-mail will be
sent to Granfs@doj.nh.gov, which e-mails every staff member in the Grants Management Unit,
notifying the Unit of the breach. The Grants Management Unit Administrator, or designee, will

respond to the subrecipient's e-mail notifying receipt of the notification by the end of the

business day that it was received. If the subrecipient does not receive a confirmation e-mail from
the Grants Management Unit, the subrecipient shall call the NHDOJ main number, (603)271-

3658, and request to speak to the Grants Management Unit and report the breach.

10. All subawards ("subgrants"1 must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements for authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that for
purposes of federal grants administrative requirements OJP considers a "subaward" (and

therefore does not consider a procurement "contract").

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site

at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition; All
subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization), and are incorporated by

reference here.y

11. Specific Dost-award approval required to use a noncomoetitive approach in anv procurement

contract that would exceed S250.000

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable

requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently,

$250,000). This condition applies to agreements that for puiposes of federal grants

administrative requirements OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not

consider a subaward). j

®  ICVL-/
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Exhibit C

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a

procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at

https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award condition: Specific

post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract (if

contract would exceed S250,000), and are incorporated by reference here.

12. Unreasonable restrictions on competition under the award: association with federal government

SCOPE. This condition applies with respect to any procurement of property or services that is "

funded (in whole or in part) by this award, whether by. the recipient or by any subrecipient at any

tier, and regardless of the dollar amount of the purchase or acquisition, the method of

procurement, or the nature of any legal instrument used. The provisions of this condition must be
among those included in any subaward (at any tier).

1. No discrimination, in procurement transactions, against associates of the federal

government

Consistent with the (DOJ) Part 200 Uniform Requirements including as set out at 2 C.F.R.

200.300 (requiring awards to be "manage[d] and adminisler[ed] in a manner so as to ensure that

Federal funding is expended and associated programs are implemented in full accordance with

U.S. statutory and public policy requirements") and 200.319(a) (generally requiring "[a]ll

procurement transactions [to] be conducted in a manner providing full and open competition"

and forbidding practices "restrictive of competition," such as "[pjlacing uni-easonable

requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do business" and taking "[ajny arbitrary

action in the procurement process") -- no recipient (or Subrecipient, at any tier) may (in any

procurement transaction) discriminate against any person or entity on the basis of such person or

entity's status as an "associate of the federal government" (or on the basis of such person or

entity's status as a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary of such an associate), except as expressly set out

,  in 2 C.F.R. 200.319(a) or as specifically authorized by USDOJ.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with

this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds

may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to

ensure compliance with this condition.

Drug Court Special Conditions-2019 Date 4/10/20
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4. Rules of construction

A. The term "associate of the federal government" means any person or entity engaged or

employed (in the past or at present) by or on behalf of the federal government as an

employee, contractor or subcontractor (at any tier), grant recipient or subrecipient (at any

tier), agent, or otherwise in undertaking any work, project, or activity for or on behalf of (or

in providing goods or services to or on behalf of) the federal government, and includes any

applicant for such employment or engagement, and any person or entity committed by legal

instrument to undertake any such work, project, or activity (or to provide such goods or .

services) in future.

B. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any

subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including

any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination lavv.

13. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including

reporting requirements and OJP authoritv to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable

requirements (including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct

related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients

("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of the

recipient or of any subrecipient.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in

persons are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-

Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to

trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)),

and are incorporated by reference here.

14. Determination of suitabilitv to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated in the application for the award (as

approved by DOJ) (or in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding

announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal statute that a purpose of some or ail of the

activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the recipient, or a subrecipient at any

tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.
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. The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before

certain individuals may interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless

of an individual's employment status.

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at

httpsi/Zojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm (Award condition: Determination of

suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with participating

minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

15. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reDortin2 of conferences,

meetings, trainings, and other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable

laws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior

approval and reporting requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for

expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food

and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences,

information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award

appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward

Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

16. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness of

work under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within the

timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation or other applicable written guidance.

Data collection supports compliance with the Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA)

and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

17. OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient - or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any

tier" develops or delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding

Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees, available at

https://oip.gov/funding/lmplementyTrainingPrinciplesForGrantees-Subgrantees.htm.

18. Effect of failure to address audit issues

The subrecipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as

appropriate) or NHDOJ may withhold award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if

(as determined by the DOJ awarding agency or NHDOJ) the subrecipient does not satisfactorily

lO/L/
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and promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform

Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection

with audits, investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

19. Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient and subrecipient at any tier agrees to comply with any additional requirements that

may be imposed by the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period

of perfonnance for this award, if the recipient is designated as "high- risk" for purposes of the

DOJ high-risk grantee list..

20. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.

Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable

requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart

E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity program.

21. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.

Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable

requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in

certain "education programs."

22. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R.

Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable

requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 (as may be applicable from time to time), specifically

including any applicable requirements regarding written notice to program beneficiaries and

prospective program beneficiaries.

Currently, among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of

discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or

refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38, currently, also sets out loiles and

requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee") organizations that engage

in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to

recipients and subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.
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The text of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 is available via the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations

(currently accessible at https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?page=browse), by browsing to Title

28-Judicial Administration, Chapter 1, Part 38, under e-CFR "current" data.

23. Restrictions on "lobbvine"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the

recipient, or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or

oppose the enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any

level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may be exceptions if an applicable federal

statute specifically authorizes certaiin activities that otherwise would be barred by law.)
Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the.

recipient, or any subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence)

a federal agency, a Member.of Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them)

with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract,

subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing, extending, or modifying any

such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an exception

that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a subrecipient)would

or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the subrecipient is to contact the NHDOJ

Grants Management Unit for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written

approval of NHDOJ.

24. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY 2019)

The subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier must comply with all applicable restrictions on the

•  use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions, including

from various "general provisions" in the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2019, are set out at

https;//ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY 19AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are incoiporated by

reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a subrecipient) would,

or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the subrecipient is to contact

the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit for guidance, and may not proceed without the express

prior written approval of the NHDOJ.

25. Reporting potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the

Inspector General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient,

11 \/ A
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contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds under this award -- (I)

submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil

violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award

should be reported to the OIG by-(l) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at

https://oig.justice.gov/hotline/contact-grants.htm (select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail

directed to: Office of the Inspector General, U.S. Department of Justice, Investigations Division,
1425 New York Avenue, N.W. Suite 7100, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (3) by facsimile

directed to the DOJ OIG Fraud Detection Office (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881

(fax).

^Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at https://oiu.iustice.uov/hotline.

26. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a

procurement contract or subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee

or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or

otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of

waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal

department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to

contravene requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified

information). Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or any other
form issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure of classified

information.

1. In accepting this award, the recipient

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or

statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict

(or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse

as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or

contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to

prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will immediately

stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written notification to the

federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption oO such obligations

only if expressly authorized to do so by that-agency.
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2. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants "),

procurement contracts, or both

a. it represents that

(1) it has determined'that no other, entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will

receive award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or

subcontract under a procurement contract) either requires or has required internal confidentiality

agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise

currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting

waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) It has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support

this representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor •

entity that receives funds under this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors

to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or

restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any

further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to

the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such

obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

27. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to emplovees")

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all

applicable provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under

specified circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the employee's

disclosure of infoimation related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a gross waste of

federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger

to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language

of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award,

the recipient is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

1

28. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While

Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipienls
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("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text messaging while
driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this award, and to establish

workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

29. Requirement to disclose whether subrecipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making
agency outside of DOJ, if the subrecipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making
agency outside of DOJ, currently or at any time during the course of the period of performance

under this award, the subrecipient must disclose that fact and certain related information to the
NHDOJ Grants Management Unit by email at Thomas.i<.aemDfer@doi.nh.gov. . For purposes of
this disclosure, high risk includes any status under which a federal awarding agency provides
additional oversight due to the recipient's past performance, or other programmatic or financial

concerns with the subrecipient. The subrecipient's disclosure must include the following: I. The
federal awarding agency that currently designates the subrecipient high risk, 2. The date the

subrecipient was designated high risk, 3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding
agency (name, phone number, and email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as

set out by the federal awarding agency.

30. The subrecipient agrees to submit to BJA for review and approval any curricula, training

materials, proposed publications, reports, or any other written materials that will be published,
including web-based materials and web site content, through funds from this grant at least thirty
(30) working days prior to the targeted dissemination date. Any written, visual, or audio

publications, with the exception of press releases, whether published at the grantee's or
government's expense, shall contain the following statements: "This project was supported by

Grant No. 2019-DC-BX-0017 awarded by the Bureau of Justice Assistance. The Bureau of

Justice Assistance is a component of the Department of Justice's Office of Justice Programs,

which also includes the Bureau of Justice Statistics, the National Institute of Justice, the Office

of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, the Office for Victims of Crime, and the
SMART Office. Points of view or opinions in this document are those of the author and do not

necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S. Department of Justice." The

current edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide provides guidance on allowable printing and .

publication activities.

31. Cooperating with OJP Monitoring

The subrecipient agrees to cooperate with OJP monitoring of this award pursuant to OJP's

guidelines, protocols, and procedures, and to cooperate with OJP (including the grant manager
for this award and the Office of Chief Financial Officer (OCFO)) requests related to such

monitoring, including requests related to desk reviews and/or site visits. The subrecipient agrees

to provide to OJP all documentation necessary for OJP to complete its monitoring tasks,

14 ., .

Revised December-2019 Initial

Drug Court Special Conditions-2019 Date 4/10/20



Exhibit C

including documentation related to any subawards at any tier made under this award. Further,

the subrecipient agrees to abide by reasonable deadlines set by OJP for providing the requested

documents. Failure to cooperate with OJP's monitoring activities may result in actions that affect

the subrecipient's DOJ awards, including, but not limited to: withholdings and/or other

restrictions on the recipient's access to award funds; referral to the DOJ GIG for audit review;

designation of the recipient as a DOJ High Risk grantee; or termination of an award(s).

32. The subrecipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or

information or data collection requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any'

information required for the assessment or evaluation of any activities within this project.

33. Justification of consultant rate

Approval of this award does not indicate approval of any consultant rate in excess of $650 per

day. A detailed justification must be submitted to and approved by the NHDOJ Grants

Management Unit prior to obligation or expenditure of such funds,

34. Recipient understands and agrees that it must submit quarterly performance metrics reports

through BJA's Performance Measurement Tool (PMT) website (https://bjapmt.ojp.gov/). For

more detailed information on reporting and other requirements, refer to BJA's website. Failure to

submit required reports by established deadlines may result in the freezing of grant funds and

High Risk designation.

35. The grantee agrees to comply with the applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38, the
/

Department of Justice regulation governing "Equal Treatment for Faith Based Organizations"

(the "Equal Treatment Regulation"). The Equal Treatment Regulation provides in part that

Department of Justice grant awards of direct funding may not be used to fund any inherently

religious activities, such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization. Subrecipients of

direct grants may still engage in inherently religious activities, but such activities must be

separate in time or place from the Department of Justice funded program, and participation in

such activities by individuals receiving services from the grantee or a sub-grantee must be

voluntary. The Equal Treatment Regulation also makes clear that organizations participating in

programs directly funded by the Department of Justice are not permitted to discriminate in the

provision of services on the basis of a beneficiary's religion. Notwithstanding any other special

condition of this award, faith- based organizations may, in some circumstances, consider religion

as a basis for employment. See http://www.ojp.gov/about/ocr/equal_fbo.htm.

36. With respect to this award, federal funds may not be used to pay cash compensation (salary plus

bonuses) to any employee of the award subrecipient at a rate that exceeds 110% of the maximum

annual salary payable to a member of the federal government's Senior Executive Service (SES)
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at an agency with a Certified SES Performance Appraisal System for that year. (An award
subrecipient may compensate ari employee at a higher rate, provided the amount in excess of this
compensation limitation is paid with non-federal funds.)This limitation on compensation rates

allowable under this award may be waived on an individual basis at the discretion of the OJP

official indicated in the. program announcement under which this award is made.

37. The subrecipient understands and agrees that no award or matching funds may be used to

provide services for violent offenders as defined in 42 U.S.C. 3797u-2, a "violent offender"

means a person who—;(1) is charged with or convicted of an offense that is punishable by a term
of imprisomnent exceeding one year, during the course of which offense or conduct— (A) the
person carried, possessed, or used a firearm or dangerous weapon; (B) there occurred the death

of or serious bodily injury to any person; or (C) there occurred the use of force against the person
of another, without regard to whether any of the circumstances described in subparagraph (A) or

(B) is an element of the offense or conduct of which or for which the person is charged or

convicted; or (2) has 1 or more prior convictions for a felony crime of violence involving the use .

or attempted use of force against a person with the intent to cause death or serious bodily harm.

38. Subrecipient understands and agrees that, to the extent that substance abuse treatment and related
services are funded by this award, they will include needed treatment and services to address

opioid abuse reduction.

39. Regarding medication-assisted treatment (MAT), the award recipient understands and agrees to
the following: 1) all clients in a BJA-funded drug court have a right to access MAT under the

care and prescription of a physician to the extent MAT is clinically indicated; 2) BJA-funded

drug courts must not deny any eligible client enrollment to the drug court program because of
their use of FDA-approved medications for the treatment of substance abuse; 3) MAT must be

permitted to be continued for as long as the prescriber determines,:that the FDA-approved
medication is clinically beneficial; 4) while under no circumstances can a BJA-funded drug court

program deny access to MAT under the care and prescription of a physician when it is clinically
indicated, a judge retains judicial discretion to mitigate/reduce the risk of abuse, misuse, or

diversion of these medications; and 5) federal funds shall not be used to support activities that

violate the Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. §§ 801-904. ,
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Katherine Robert, Regional Director

Name and Title of Authorized Representative

April 10,2020

Signature Date

JSl Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
501. South Street, 2nd Floor, Bow, NH 03304

Name and Address of Agency
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EEOP Reporting

I, N/A ^ [responsible ojficiaf], certify that

[recipient] has completed the EEO reporting tool certification

form at: https://oip.gov/about/oci /faq ceop.htm on [Date]

And that [responsible official] has completed the EEOP
training at https://oip.gQv/about/ocr/ocr-training-videos/video-ocr-training.htm on: N/A [date]

ic .L r .t- . JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health instituter . .1 further certify that: ^ . . [recipient]
will comply with applicable federal civil rights laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the
delivery of services.

Signature: * V X y Date: ^pt'l 1Q> 2020



CERTIFICATION FORM
Compliance with the Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) Requirements
Please read carefully the Instructions (see below) and then complete Section A or Section B or Section C, not all three. If recipient
com^lei^^ectioi^^i^^n^ub^rants^ajin^h^war^vei^SOO^OOOji^addiii^^
Recipient's Name: JSl Research & Training Institute. Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute

Address; 501 South Street, 2nd Floor,'Bow, NH 03304 ^ ^
Is agency a; □ Direct or aSub recipient of OJP, OVW or COPS funding? .1 Law Enforcement Agency? □ Yesc No
DUNS Number: 04-2679824 . _ . | Vendor Number (only if direct recipient)
Name and Title of Contact Person: Rachel Kohn

Secdoh A—^Declaration Claiming Complete Exemption from the EEOP Requirement
Please check all the following boxes that apply.

o Less than fifty employees. o Indian Tribe □ Medical Institution.
(X Nonprofit Organization □ Educational Institution ' o Receiving a single award(s) less than S2S,000.

I, K-atie Robert" ■ [responsible
Qfpjcial], certify that JSl Research & Training Institute, Jiic. d/b/a Community Health Institute "
[recipient] is not required to prepare an EEOP;for the reason(s) checked above, pursuant to 28 C.F.R § 42.302.
I further certify that JSl Research & Training Institute. Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute [recipient]
will comply with applicable federal civil ri^ts laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the delivery of
services.

Ifrecipient sub-gratus a single award over $500,000, in addition, ̂ i^se complete Section D

Katie Robert, Regional Director / 4/10/20
Print or Type Name and Title . Signature' . . ... . .. • Date

Section B—Declaration Claiming Exemption from the EEOP Submission Requirement and Certifying
That an EEOP Is on File for Review

If a recipient agency hasfifty or more employees and is receiving a single award or. subaward, of$25.000ormorc. but less than $500,000. then
the recipient agency does not have to submit an EEOP to the OCR for review as long as it certifies the following (42 C.F.R. § 42.305):

I, ; [responsible
official], certify that ]
[recipient], which has fifly or more'employees and is receiving a single award or subaward for $25,000 or more, but less
than $500,000, has formulated an EEOP in accordance witii 28 CFR pt. 42, subpt. E. I further certify that within the last
twenty-four months, the proper authority has fonnulated and signed into effect the EEOP and, as required by applicable
federal law, it is available for review by the public, employees, the appropriate state planning agency, and the Office for
Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs,U.S. Department of Justice. The EEOP is on file at the following office:

[organization].

[address].

Print or Type Name and Title Sisuiature - . Date

Section C—^Declaration Stating that an EEOP Short Form Has Been Submitted to the Office for Civil
Rights for Review
fa /vcipient agency hasfifty or more employees and is receiving a single award, or suba\vard. of $500,000 or more, then the recipient agency
must send an EEOP Short Form to the OCRfor nview.

I, • • . ^ [responsible
official], certify that ••
[recipient], which has fifty or more employees and is receiving's single award of $500,000 or more, has formulated an
EEOP in'accordance with 28 CFR pt. 42, subpt. E, and sent it for review on
[date] to the OfficeTor Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

If recipient sub-grants a single award over $500,000, in addition, please complete Section D



Section D—Declarfltion Stating that Recipient $uba>vards a Singk Award Over $500,000

tfa.ivclpicni agency; siibawai-ds a single a^vard o/S500.000,or more then the granting agency should pivvide alist: including, name, address
and DUNS U ofeach such sub-recipiehi.

Sub-Recipient Agency Name/Address Sub-Recipient DUNS Number

N/A

-

If addilional space in necessary, please duplicate this, page.

OMBConirol No. II2I-0340 Expiration Date: 12/31/20IS
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Non-supplanting Certification

Supplanting defined
Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same, purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-a.ward review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the applicant or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occuired for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II,
Chapter 3). httD://www.oiD.usdoi.gov/Financialguide/Dai-t2/pait2chau3.htm.

Supplanting and iob retention

A grantee may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the federal money, would
be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it must be able tp
substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be, but is not
limited to, one of the following foims: an official memorandum, official minutes of a county or
municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced when
making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the terminated
positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or local funds.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a

The Coinmuniiy Health Institute (Applicant) certifies that any funds awarded

through grant number 2020ADC01 shall be used to supplement existing funds for

program activities and will not replace^(supplant) nonfederal funds that have been appropriated

for the purposes and goals of the grant.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a . ^
The Community Health Institute (Applicant) understands that supplanting

violations may result in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension of future

funds under this program, suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies

provided under this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Name and Title: •^a^herine Robert, Regional Director

Signature: y x—y Date: 4/10/20



Exhibit F

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENt, SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they
are required to attest. Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in
the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a material
representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of Justice
("Department") determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

1.LOBBVrNG

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Applicant certifies
and assures (to the extent applicable) the following:
(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Applicant, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b) If the Applicant's request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Applicant shall complete and subrnit Standard Form
- LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency's) instructions; and

(c) The Applicant shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Applicant certifies.
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with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier "covered transaction," as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867,20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—
(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction of justice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or its principals') present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application. Where the Applicant or any of its principals was
convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal violation
under any Federal law, the Applicant also must disclose such felony criminal conviction in
writing to the Department (for OJP Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov;
for OVW Applicants, to OVW at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS
at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov), unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. If the Applicant is a corporation, it certifies either that (1) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies
have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an
agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or (2) the corporation has
provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or liabilities) to the Department (for OJP
Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Applicants, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov)r^

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application.
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4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN .INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:
A. The Applicant certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free •
workplace by—

(a) Publishing a statement notifying erhployees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of dmg abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occuiring in the
workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee's conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under'
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
ATTN: Control Desk, 810 7th Street,, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.
Notice shall include the identification number(s)iOf each affected award;
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:
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(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1.973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program-approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith efTort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f)-

If you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

Katherine Robert, Regional Director

Name and Title of Head of Agency

April 10,2020

Signature Date
JSl Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
501 South Street, 2nd Floor, Bow, NH 03304
Name and Address of Agency



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that JSI RESEARCH & TRAINING

INSTITUTE, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 17,

2016. I ftirther certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office.is concerned.

Business ID; 739507

Certificate Number: 0004883368

%

tarn

O

«»5)

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify tliat COMMUNITY HEALTH

INSTITUTE is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 12, 2016. I further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is coiiccmcd.

Business ID: 742096

Certificate Number: 0004883373

%

ao.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



' CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

1, Joel H. Lamstein. of the JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc., d^/a Community Health Institute, do hereby
certify that:

1. 1 am the duly elected President of the JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community

Health Institute:

2. By Unanimous Consent in Writing of the Board of Directors in Lieu of the 2008 Annual Meeting, the

following is true copy of one resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the JSI Research &

*  Training Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute, duly dated October 24. 20^;

RESOLVED: Appointment of Katherine Robert as Director of the Community Health Institute

with the authority to enter into contracts and agreements binding the Corporation.,

3. I further certify that the foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full

force and effect as of April 10. 2020

IN WITNESS WHEI^OF. I have hereunto set my hand as the President of the JSI Research & Training Institute.

Inc.. d/b/a "Community Health Institute this K^dav of April 2020.

Joel H/Lamstem. Presidwt

STATE OF New Hampshire

COUNTY OF Merriitiack

The foregoing.instrunient was acknowledged before me this 10^ day of April. 2020 bv Joel H. Lamstein.

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My Commission Expires:
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JOHNSNO-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DMEANEY

DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

1/21/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S); AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policyfies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does hot confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Mason & Mason Technology Insurance Services, Inc.
458 South Ave. .
Whitman, MA 02382

CONTACT Judy Yeary

Ex.,: (781) 447-5531 no,:(781 ) 447-7230
iyeary@masoninsure.com

INSURER(S) AfFORDING COVERAGE NAictr

INSURER A Great Northern Insurance Co. 20303

INSURED

JSI d/b/a Community Health Institute
44 Farnsworth Street

Boston, MA 02210-1206

INSURER B Federal Insurance Company 20281

INSURER C Executive Risk indemnity 35181

INSURER 0

INSURER e

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

INiiD
SU8R

WYP POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/DD/YYYY,
POLICY EXP

(MM/nO/YYYY, LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

E  OCCUR 35873320 9/9/2019 9/9/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
5  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC DAMAGE TO RENTED J  1,000,000

MED EXP (Anv one oersonl
s  10,000

PERSONAL 4 ADV INJURY
J  1,000,000

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE
J  2,000,000

POLICY 1 1 LAJ LOC
other^^'^^''^^^ Agg $10M

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG
J  included

X $

B AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

73546634 9/9/2019 9/9/2020

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT s  1,000,000

ANY AUTO

HEOULED
fios

BODILY INJURY IPer oerson, s

>I >o
ill oo zz  <<

X
sc
A1 BODILY INJURY (Per accident) s

X X
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddentT s

s

B X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE 79861066 9/9/2019 9/9/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
J  20,000,000

AGGREGATE
J  20,000,000

DED RETENTIONS s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ^ ̂
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE j j

LJ
II yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

71733182 9/9/2019 9/9/2020

y PER OTH-
^ RTATUTF FR 1

E.L, EACH ACCIDENT
J  1,000,000

E.L DISEASE EA EMPLOYEE
^  1,000,000

F I . niSFA.SF - POI ICY LIMIT
,  1,000,000

c

B

E&O/CYBER

Directors & Officers

G46887694

81595534

11/30/2019

11/30/2019

11/30/2020

11/30/2020

GENERAL AGGREGATE

EACH OCC/GEN AGG

5,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remark* Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)
With respect General Liability, certificate holder Is included as an additional Insurea If the Insured specifically agrees In a written contract or agreement. The
insurance afforded to an additional insured under this provision applies on a primary and non-contrlbutory basis subject to the complete terms and
limitations of policy form 80-02-2367 *

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Department of Justice
33 Capitol Street.
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Justice

Contractor Name:

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community
Health Institute

Name of Contract: BJA Discretionary Drug Court Grant

BUDGET PERIOD: 6/1/2020 -9/30/2022,

NAME JOB TITLE SALARY;,

PERCENT PAID
FROM THIS

^ CONTRACT '

^AMOUNT PAID FROM _

THIS CONTRACT

Rachel Kohn Project Director $108,000 30% $64,800

Debbie Love Project Data Manager $66,150 40% $53,000

Lori Walter Logistics Manager $68,000 15% $20,400

TOTAL SALARIES $138,200.00

Note: The percpent of salary Is based upon annual salary and the amount paid from this contract is for 2 years, the percent paid frorh
this contract is based upon an annual percent



Rachel S. Kohn, MSW, MPH
JSl Research &'Training Institute, Inc.. 501 South Street. 2'^ Floor Rachel_kohn(^si.cqm
Bow. New Hampshire 05304, 60S-573-3360

Education

, School OF The Museum OF Fine ARTS, Boston, Massachusetts
Graphic Design Certificate. December, 2008

Boston University Schoolof Public Health, Boston, Massachusetts

Epidemiology, September., 1998

Boston University School of Social Work, Boston, Massachusetts
.M.S.W.. Macro Social Work. May, 1997

University of Massachusetts, Amherst, Massachusetts

B.A.. Social Thought and Political Economy, May, 1989

Experience

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., Boston, Massachusetts and Bow, New Hampshire
Senior Consultant, November 1998 to present
Areas of technical expertise include: project management; needs assessment; program evaluation; survey research design and
administration; technical assistance for program-level and client-ievel program implementation; all aspects of qualitative and
quantitative data collection, management and analysis; grant writing, and report writing and dissemination. Content expertise
includes evidence-base strategies to address substance abuse prevention and treatment; treatment drug courts; and prisoner
reentry programs. These technical skills are complimented by.extensive experience in graphic design witli a focus on data
interpretation, presentation, and visualization of data results.

Current Data & Evaluation Projects:

Signature Healthcare Offic^Based Addiction Treatment
Evaluation subcontract in support of Signature Health Care - Brockton Hospital's SAMHSA-funded Targeted
Capacity Expansion: Medication Assisted Treatment - Prescription Drug (MAT PDOA) Opioid Addiction Office-
Based Addiction Treatment Program (SOBAT). Design and oversee a utilization-focused evaluation plan, data
collection tools, integration with electronic medical rccord.s systems, develop and disseminate evaluation reports and
comply with Federal reporting requirements.

Harbor Homes Grants for the Benefit of Homeless Individuals

Evaluator for the 5-year SAMHSA-fuhded Grants for the Benefit of Homeless Individuals (GBHI)). Design and
oversee a utilization-focused evaluation plan, data collection tools, integration with electronic medical records
systems, develop and disseminate evaluation reports and eomply with Federal reporting requirements. Provide
oversight and technicahassistancc Mth pn-gbing quality improvement strategics throu^ the use of monitoring,
participant feedback and process evaluation.

NH Center for Excellence Addressing Alcohol and other Drugs
Data and evaluation consultant for this state-wide technical assistance and resource center for the implementation of
evidence-based intcrvcntioris in alcohol and other drug prevention, intervention, treatment and recovery services.
Provide technical assistance to the DHHS Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services, their grantees and other state and
local stakeholders to support data-informed decision making at the community and state level; logistical support for
the biennial implementation of the in coordination with state partners; and facilitate additional evaluation and
analysis to support Partnership for Success program monitoring and evaluation.

New Hampshire Juvenile Court Diversion Network
Project Director - with funding fhD'm New Hampshire Department of Children, Youth & Families, lead the
development of a Juvenile Court Diversion Center for Excellence to educate policymakers and stakeholders on the
core elements and best practices of diversion programs; research juvenile diversion best-practices; establish
communication and outreach strategies.to gamer community support for juvenile diversion; and develop strategies to
expand and sustain court diversion pYograms. Conduct research on the recidivism rates of court diversion participants
^d provide oh-gping technical assistance on expansion and integration of evidence-based practices.

^  ̂ ^ R. Kohn 1



' Hnisbbrough County Adult. Treatment Drug Court
Evaluator - Design and oversee a utilization-focused evaluation plan for the SAMHSA Center for Substance Abuse
Treatment-funded Hillsborough County Drug Court (HCDC). In parallel, implement a Department of Justice Bureau
of Justice Assistance-funded cost-benefit analysis of the CCDC using the Transactlonal and Institutional Cost Analysis
approach along with a quasi-experimental study design to compare outcome result between participants and
comp^able peers.

Community-Based Coalition Evaluation
Evaluator - Provide program evaluation and monitoring sciA'iccs for local substance abuse prevention coalitions and
Drug-Free Community Grantees. Scope of woric includes developing evaluation plans based on logic modeling,
implementing program monitoring and evaluation surveys, collecting and reporting outcome measures using YRBS or
comparable data sources, and local strategy/activity program.evaluation.

Manchester Calculating Adequate Systems Tool
Project Director • Support the Mayor in the City of Manchester to identify service capacity and gaps; establish priority
.strategies and develop a plan for improving the delivery of substance use disorder services in Manchester. Facilitate a
highly collaborative process in concert with the Mayor's office, the Manchester Health bcpartmeni, and Makin' It
Happen Coalition for Resilient Youthy.Inc; (MIH), to quantify the current capacity and heed for additional services,
utilize the Calculating Adequate Systems Tool (CAST) developed by SAMHSA, or a similar, to quantify the .service
gaps and needs for the City.

Recent Graphic Design/Data Visualization/Branding Projects

Fenway Health.
Artistic director and lead designer for graphical design of 11 toolkits for the Evidence-Informed Interventions
Coordinating Center for Technical Assistance CE2i CCTA) through its funding from The Health Resources and Services
Administration.

Voices of New Hampshire's Youth: A Rapid Assessment of Youiig Adults In New Hampshire
Tools from the Field: Participant-Centered Techniques for Effective Training
Graphic designer responsible for design, layout, type-setting, and print produclibn oversight of 130 page manual and CD
for World Education, Inc.

Creating Positive Change Coalition (CPC)
Evaluation and graphic design work for community-based coalition targeting substance use among area youth. Compiled
and analyzed local Youth Risk Behavior Survey data, wrote the Summaiy of Findings: Youth,Risk Behavior Survey
2005 report. Responsible for design and layout of repbn narrative, tables and charts.

Legacy Fouhdntioh Tobacco Education Training Manuals
Graphic designer responsible for design, layout, type-setting, ̂ d print production oversight of three tobacco education
training curriculum manuals.

Northern Strafford County Health and Safety Council
Graphic dcrigiierof logo for regional collaborative addressing public health is.sues and of the Community Health Profile
for the Strafford County Region: Findings report. Responsible for design and layout of report narrative, tables and charts.

Associations | boards
National Association of Drug Court Professionals; American Evaluation Association; American Institute of Graphic Arts

Computer Skills

Adobe Creative Cloud; Illustrator, Photoshop, InDesign, MS Office Suite: Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Publisher, SPSS; Social
Network Applications.

R. Kolm 2



Debra L. Love
JSI Research. & Training Institute, Inc., DebbieJove@jsi.com
501 South Street. 2"^Floor, Bow^ New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3310

Education

Plymouth State College, Plymouth, New Hampshire
B.S., Business. Psychology and Health
Interdisciplinary Studies: 1985-1990

iNSTiTufE OF Children's Literature, West Redding, Connecticut
Diploma: Writing, 1994-1996

at-Home Professions, FORT COLLINS, COLORADO . '
Certification: Medical Transcripiionist - March to August 2004

Certified NH Notary Public, 2008 to Present

Experience

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Project Manager, 2019 to present
Office Manager, 2016-2019
Project Coordinator, 2001-2016

Hillsborough County Drug Court (HCDC)
Provide support in the program evaluation of the HCDC program to expand the substance use disorder treatment
capacity in their Superior Court through the development of the HCDC. The goal is to reduce recidivism by brcaking.the
criminogenic patterns of behavior related to substance abuse and addiction among high risk/high need nonrviolcnt
offenders.

NH Center for Excellence

Provide fiscal, logistical, administrative, web.site and data management for a statewide technical assistance resource
center for evidence-based practice in substance abuse services. The Center establishes a base of evidence-based practices
in prevention, developing a learning collaborative of networks and practitioners to engage in systems change to support
evidence-based practice, and establishes data dissemination systems to ensure that data is both an input to and output of
evidence-based practice. An expert panel endorses evidence-based practice selections, outcome measurement designs,
and the process by which promising practices may develop a base of evidence of effectiveness in New Hampshire.

NH ImmunizatloQ Marketing
Provide project support with social marketing content management to develop a creative health marketing campaign, for
the NH Immunization Program that identifies priority audiences, best-practice outreach strategies, and partner
communication channels, effective educational outreach materials to advance t)ie understanding of the health benefits of
vaccines and immunizations and increase NH immunization fates.

Harbor Homes Grants for the Benefit of Homeless Individuals

Project support for the five-year SAMHSA-funded Grants for the Benefit of Homeless Individuals (GBHI)). Design and
oversee a utilization-focused evaluation.plan, data collection tools, integration with electronic medical.records systems,
develop and disseminate evaluation reports and comply with Federal reporting requirements.

Oral Health Promotional Partner

Project support for training; technical assistance; program promotion, and program evaluation and suppon for the NH
DHHS, Oral Health Program (OHP) and the NH dental workforce, with an emphasis on determining and supporting the
needs of the state's vulnerable and under-served populations, both inside of our schools, and in the broader community.

Cbronic Disease Conditions

Provide project management for improving access to. and participation in Ahie'rican Diabetes Association/American
Association of Diabetes Educators accredited Diabetes Self-Management Education and Support programs in
underseivcd areas; increasing engagement of pharmacists in the provision of medication therapy management; assisting
health care organizations in implementing systems to identify people with prediabetes and referring them to National

D. Love 11 P i\ g e



Diabetes Prevention Programs for type two (2) diabetes prevention; promoting adoption of evidence-based quality
measurement at the provider level; facilitating the use of self-measured blood pressure monitoring tied with clinical
support among adults with hypertension; and implementing systems to facilitate systematic referral of adults with
hypertension and/or high blood cholesterol to community programs and resources approved by the CDC.

New Hampshire SBIRT Iniriativc
Provided training to healthcare providers and systems implementing SBIRT (Screening^ Brief Intcrvehtibn, and Referral
to Treatment) as a strategy to integrate behavioral health and primary care to identify patients at risk of substance misuse.
Developed and implemented a variety of leariiing opportunities such as webinars, meetings, and onsite trainings and
shared learning to help providers address all facets of their wbrkflow. The training builds knowledge and skills utilizing
motivational interviewing techniques with patients identified at greater risk.

Injury Prevention Professional Trainings
Supported the Injury Prevention Program, Division of Public Health Services and the Injury Prevention Community
Planning Group by providing planning, promoting and logistical support and evaluation for professional trainings with
the goal of supporting appropriate activities, that educate the public health workforce, policymakers and the public on the
value ofevidcnccd-based injury prevention measures in reducing preventable deaths and the severity of injuries as well
as.health care costs.

Quality Improvement in Enhancing the System of Services for Children and Youth with Epilepsy
Provided logistical and administrative support to HRSA's Maternal and Child Health Bureau to assist Innovative
Su-ategies and Promising Practices grantees to improve the system of care in medically underserved and rural areas for
children and youth with epilepsy. The purpose of the overall initiative is to explore mechanisms to spread improvement
of the quality of services for children and youth with epilepsy (CYE) in the medical home and to strengthen the cb-
managcmenl relationship between.the medical home and the specialty network. The project aims arc to: 1) Create a
three-session learning collaborative for grantees; 2) Analyze the results of the evaluation compiled from prior learning
collaboratives and design a strategy to incorporate.continuous learning improvement: and 3) Conduct a comprehensive
analysis of the learning collaborative.

NH Conference on Aging
Project Manager for the New Hampshire Bureau ofEldcrly and Adult's (BEAS) Conference oh Aging. Oversight of this
project includes fiscal management, generation of funding through sponsorship and exhibitors, negotiation of conference
expenses vrithin, facilitation of planning committee meetings, coordination of logistics specificto the needs of the target
pppulanpn, and providing BEAS with recomrnendations. Other scope of work includes building website, with online
registration fpmi; database creatioii; soliciting sponsors and exhibits; executing speaker and site contracts; coordination
of registration; oversight of graphic design; generating weekly reports for client and post-conference sur\'ey and
analysis, The Conference oh Aging is an annual event whose goal is to provide information, education and training for
older adults that promotes awareness, self-determination, advocacy, collaboration and independence.

Strategic Prevention Framework - SIG Region B, F, J & I
Provided administrative support for a state-defined region to plan for and implement evidence-based strategics to
prevention and reduce alcohol use and abuse, among 12 to 17 year olds. The regional initiahve is part of a statewide
Strategic.Prevention Framework (SPIO funded by the U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
that engages communities in a.five-step process to assess, build capacity for, plan, implement and evaluate strategies to
reduce highrrisk alcohol consumption and its harmful consequence.

National Health Ser\'ice Corps (NHSC)
Data Coordinator for a major initiative to collect 'Uniform Data Systems' (UDS) information from all National Health
Service Corps sites across the country, which do not receive direct federal grants. The data collected describes the
financial and operational parameters of the health centers, and forms the basis of NHSC management decisions and
reports to Congress, as well a.s informing the health centers of their relative performance. The project involves "extensive
data management and technical editing of reported data as well as the development of unique software to collect,
manage, and screen the data elccu'omcally.

Multistate Learning Collaborative
Administrative support for the RWJF-ftindcd Multistate Leaming.Collaboralive (MLC-3), a national collaborative effort
to improve public health services and the health of communities by linking public health processes to health outcbmes.
Manage two learning collaboratives addressing childhood obesity and health improvement planning, and tobacco
cessation among pregnant women and workforce development. Developed assessment topis and conduct public health
network capacity assessments to inform NH public health regipnalization process.

D. Love 2 I P a g c



LoRi Walter, CMP
JS Research & Training Insiiiule Inc.. 501 Sdiiih Sireel. 2"'' Floor iorijvaiteri^si.com
Bow, New Hampshire 05301 (603),573-3306

Education

ASHWORTH University, Norcross, Georgia

A.S., Business Management

Convention Indusi-ry Council, Washington, D.C.
Certified Meeting Pro/essiohal (CMP) d^ignation 2005

Professional Career Development Institute, Ashworth university, Uorcross, Georgia
Certified in Bridal Consulting, 2003
Certified in Travel & Tourism, 1998

New Hampshire Technical Institute, Concord, New Hampshire
Courseworkin hospitality sales & management, hotel management, and'convention planning, 1999-2001

Experience
I

JSl Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, NH
Training & Event Manager, July.2007 to present

Continuing Nursing Education Coordinator January 2012 to present
Provides ongoing support and administration of JSl's continuing nursing education (CNE) accreditation through the
Northeast Multi-State Division of Continuing Education. Works with JSI staff to develop programs that adhere to the
smct NEMSD and American Nursing Association guidelines for CNE approval. In addition, works with JSl staff oii
researching and developing prograins that adhere to other accreditation guidelines such as continuing medical education,
social worker education, licensed drug and alcohol counselors, prevention specialists, etc.

NH HIV Planning Group {HPG) July 2017 - Present
Project director for the 1)JH HPG through a contract with the NH Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of
Infectiouis Disease. Project management, budgeting, client relations, and overseeing the project and the project team.
Provides logistical support for committee meetings, trainings, and special events including a biennial conference, World
Aids Day activities, training to health and community professionals on issues such as HIV, and transgender health.

NH Race & Equity Logistical Coordinator May 20)8 to present
Project director for the NH Race and Equity project funded by the Endowment for Health. Work-s cloj»ely with the
Endowment's prograrn director to establish processes, and manage logistics for six workgroups. The woricgroups bring together
community members and professionals from various sectors to help develop action plans to adt^ess racial inequities in NH. JSl
staff arc.also managing the logistics or the Endowment's second NH Race & Equity Symposium being held in April 2019.

Public Health Emergency Preparedness Training and Technical Assistance July 2007 to present
Provides conference and training logistics management for the Public Health Emergency Preparedness Technical
A.ssistance and Training projects funded by the NH DHHS and NH Homeland Security and Emergency Managements
(HSEM) to provide training and technical assistance to public health emergency planning partners in New Hampshire's
Public Health Regions. As part of the Technical Assistance and Training project, provides training logistics for
contracted training, workshops and events as well as conference management for the one-day NH Emergency
Preparedness Conference held amiually for over 900 attendees, speakers and vendors. In addition, manages logistics for
the NH Integrated Emergency Volunteer Training Conference held annually for 200 emergency volunteers. Also
provided conference logistics for the 2010 Functional Needs Conference for 150 participants.

Marketing the Immunization Message in NH/u/y m present
Provides project support and conference logistics for the NH DHHS Immunization Program's annual NH Imriiunizaiion
Conference. The conference team provides promotion, registration, fiscal management, exhibitor solicitation, planning
committee management, speaker coordination, CEU/CME management, set-up and day-of pnsite management. The goal
of the conference is to educate healthcare providers on immunization specific topics.

L, Walter 1



NH Center for Excellence January 2009 to present
Provides logistical and administrative support for a statewide technical assistance resource center for evidence-based
practice In substance abuse ̂ rvices. The Center establishes a base pf evidencerbased practices in prevention, developing
a letuTiing collaborative of networks and jsractitioners to engage,in systems change to support evidence-based practice,
and establishes data .dissemination systemsjo ensure that data is both an input to and output of evidence-based practice.
An expert panel endorses evidence-based practice selections, outcome measurement designs, and the process by which
"promising practices may devclpp a base of evidciicc of effectiveness in New Hampshire.

Healthy Hpnics and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program July 20J4 - preserjl
Primary responsibilities include working with the New England Lead Coordinating Committee to coordinate the biennial
New England Lead Coiiference, as well working with the HHLPPP to coortinate regional dinners and other cvcnLs to
promote the program initiatives. In 2018, work al^ included event management for the NH Healthy Homes Conference.

Vermont lihmunization & Infectioiis Disease Conference and Diversion Workshop Logistics September 2016 to
September 2018,
Project director overseeing and managing event logistics for the Vermont Department of Healtli's biennial Immunization
& Infectious Disease Conference, and the 2018 Vermont Drug Diversion Workshop.

NH Governor's Summit on Substance Misuse November 2015-July 2016
Provided conference management for the one-day NH Governor's Summit on Substance Misuse held in May 2016 for
800+ attendees, speakers and vendors. Services included promotion, registration, fiscal management, exhibitor
solicitation, planning commiliee management, speaker coordination, CEU management, set-up and day-of onsite
management. *

Weight of the Nation Community Screenings & Events December 2012 to Januar)' 2014
Provided project management and logistical coordination. The project, funded by HNH Foundation, was to provide
logistical support and coordination to community partners for 12 community screenings of the Weight of the Nation film
four Challenges. The objective of the screening project was to raise awareness of the social costs and implication of
obesity and to begin to build local and regional action to create access to heal^y food and efiHance recreational
opportunities.

Uniform Data System for the Bureau of Primary Care September 2008 to 2014
Serves as a training logistics coordinator for a major initiative to collect 'Uniform Data Systcrii' (UDS) information from
all BPHC funded sites across the country. Responsibilities include coordinating training logistics with the training
coordinator^ host primary care associations (PCAs) and trainers, compilation and distribution of training materials to the
host PCAs, and compiling and summarizing training evaluations.

Uniform Data System for the Indian Health Services Urban Indian Health Program September 2008 to 2014
Serves as a training coordinator for a major initiative to collect 'Uniform Data System' (UDS) information. The UDS is a
standardized reporting system that provides consistent information about the administrative, financial and clinical performance
of 34 UiHP funded grantees nationwide. Responsibilities includes coordinating several annual one or two day trainings
around the United Slates, informing grantees of training in their area, registering grantees, trainer travel arrangements,
facility site selection and logistical management, compilation and distribution of training materials, and compiling and
summarizing training evaluations.

New,England Meat Conference 20/2 w Ju/yiO/i
Provided project management and event logistics and rnanagemcnl for the first ever New England Meal Conference and
New England Meat Ball in March 2013 which over the course of two-days, attracted over 350 participants. The goal of
the conference was to enhance the production, processing, and marketing of sustainable, nutritious, hiimancly-raised, and
delicious meal from New England farms by providing education and networking opportunilieis for meal producers,
processors, government officials, and consumers.

Prescription Drug Strategy Summit -A/ove/n6er 20//
Provided project management and event logistics management for the October 2011 Prescription Drug Abuse Strate^
Summit which brought together 165 stakeholders to address NH's prescription drug abuse epidemic. The goal of the
summit was to gather stakeholder input for the Prescription Drug Abuse Plan which goes before the Governor in
December 2011.

L. Walter 2



Child & Family Services Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment Program October 2007 to August 2011
Provided adminis^tive support and data management services for Child and Family Services (CFS) for the CSAT
ftinded Assertive Adolescent and Family Treatment (AAFT-2 and AAFT-3) projeeis. Data management activities
include: Acts as the liaison between Chestnut Health Systems, CSAT and CFS data sys.tehis, provides ongoing technical
assistance and support in'setting up and maintaining tlie' ABS/GAIN data collection systems, compile and report on
client satisfaction survey upon discharge from ASAT program, ongoing data monitoring and technical assistance,
conduct process and outcome evaluation activities, 'evaluation tool development, data collection training and support for
CFS staff as needed to maintain quality data, SPSS and Access database development, creating clienftracking systems,
web based GPIC^ data enuy, data cleaning and analysis, and report writing.

•Social Distancing Law Project March-July 2010
Provided logistics for the NH DHHS and AG's office Social Distancing legal assessment meeting which followed a
tabletop format and was conducted with state and local public health leaders and other key stakeholders to determine the
sufficiency and identify potential gaps in current state law regarding implementation of social distancing measure's.

t^HTecn Foster Conference July'200710 September 2009
Provided administration support coordination and conference management for the thirti, fourth and fifth annual NH Teen
Foster Conferences. The CHI team worked clbselywith the DCYF staff and Youth Advisory Board, to deveiop
workshops and materials that arc most'interesting and helpful to the youth and meet their mission and goals. CHI
provided conference management sen'ices including developing and managing a confidential registration system and
day-of, onsite logistical support.

Healthy Eating Active Living (HEAL) August-November 2007
Provided administrative support and conference management for the state wide HEAL conference in 2007. The HEAL
objectives where to develop a statewide plan for promoting health eating and active living. The ultimate goal of the
project is to promote personal wcllness through active living and healthy eating. CHI facilitated a process lead by a
statewide Steering Committee composed of representatives from schools, business, communities, and government, Five
work groups where established to identify priority policy, educational.and programmatic interventions to promote
individual wellness including: schools, health care industry, worksites, food and recreational industry, community, and
built and natural environment. The project includes a statewide conference to present the plan to stakeholders and
technical assistance to community-based collaborative to develop active plans for implementing the statewide plan.

Youth Vision December 2007 to March 2008

Provided administrative support and focus group coordination for assessment project for 1^ Employment Services and
the NH Departments of Education and Health and Human Services to gather quantitative and qualitative data oh tlie well
being of youth.exiting the foster care and residential care system in Manchester.

NH HIV Logistics and Capacity Building July 2007 to June 2008
Provide administrative support for the NH HIV Logistics and Capacity Building Project funded by the NHDHHS and the
Division of Public Health Services STD/HIV Prevention Section. This project provides logistical and capacity building
support for the NH HIV community planning process and for funded HIV Prevention Services agencies.

L. Walters
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INDEPENDENT AUblTOR'S REPORT

■ To^hc Board of Directors • '

JSI Researcliand'Traihing institute^Jnc. and.Afniiale

Report on the Consolidated Finariciai Stutemciits ..

We have audited the 'accompanying consolidated financial statements of JSI Research and
Training Institute. .Inc. and Affiliate (both, hon-profit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial pdsition as of September 30, .2018,. and the rclaled
consolidated staternents of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibilit}' for the Consolidated Financial SUtemerifs

Management. i.s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial.statements.in accordance wjih accoibti.ng pfinciples generally accepted in thcTJnited
States of,America; this includes the design, implementation, and riiainlcnance of internal iControl
;relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are, free
from material misstatement, vvhether due to fraud or error. ' '

Audifor's Rcspohsibilitj'

Our responsibility is to e.xpress an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted pur audit in accordance-with :audiling standards generally accepted, in
the United States of America and the standards, applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Aitciiling Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan, and perform the audit to obtain reasonable .assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free.of material misstatement;

An audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disciosures in. the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of maiterial, misstatemeni of the
consolidated financial 'statements, whelhei" due to fraud or error; In making those risk



assessnients, the auditor considers internal control relevant to ..the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated fniMcial statements in order tp design audit procedures that are
apprdpfiate in the circumstances, but, not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on, the
effectiveness of the entity s internal control. Accordingly; we express, ho. such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropfiaieness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates..made by .management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation .of the consolidated financial statements.

We. believe that the, audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit, dpinioh.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements rcfeireci to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the.financial position of JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
as of September 30, 2018, .and the. changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters

Other- Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a. whole. The. accompanying .schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Iitle .2 U.S. Qocle. dj Federal Regulations Part 200. Uniform AclminLurative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awarcis, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of majiagement and was derived from ahd relates directly
to the underlying accounting arid other records used to prepare the consolidated, financial
statements.- The. information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the consolidated tinancial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconcilihg such information directly to the underlying.accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and b^er additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of Afnerica. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects^ in relation'lo'lhe consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Report, on Summarized Comparative Information

Wc have previously audited the JSl Research and. Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated April 23. 2018. In our opinion, the summarized
consolidated comparati ve information presented herein as of and for the year ended September
30, 2017 ,is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
trom which it has.been derived.



Other Reporting Required by Governmeti/Auditing Sta^

In accordance'\y'ilh Covernmerii /[Udiling Standards, we have also issued a report dated May 1,
.2019, on our consideration of JSl Resetu-.ch ̂ and traihihg Institute, inc. and AfTiliate's internal
contrqi oVcr financial reporting and on our tests of their compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements ,and other matter! 'The purpose of that report
is to describe tlie scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of JSl Research
iand Training Institute, Inc. and AOHiaie's internal control over financial reporting of on
compliaiice. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance wi th Coycrnmeni
Auditing Standards in considering JSI Reseai'ch and Training. Institute, Inc. and Affiliate's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Duxbury, Massachusetts
May 1, 2019



JSI Research and.Trainjng Institute, Inc. and.Affiliate
CONSQLlbATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

'September 30, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for 2017)

2018 2017

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables for program work
Field advances - program
Employee advances

.Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment:
Fumiture aiid equipment
Leasehold imprpyements

l.ess: Accuhfulated depreciation

Net Property and Equipment

Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

$  76.856,647

20,895,129

631,877

190,734

3,807

98,578,194

679.098

30,355

709,453

(671,248)

38,205.

146,741

98,763,140

74,642,976

19.782,268

1,697,407

.190,500

67.950

96.381,101

679,098

.  30.355

709,453

(651.423)

58,030

1 19,888

S  96,559,019

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and payroll wilhholclings
Accrued vacation

Advances for program work
UDans. payable - related party
Notes payable

Contingencies

Tolal.Currcnt Liabilities .

Net; Assets:

Unrestricted

Tcniporarijy restricted

'Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

16U 28,795

1,810,950

27.130,737

369,577

45,440,059

■53,065.872-
257.209

53.323.081

1 1,678,687
1,920,964.

35,095.465
196,828

48.891,944

47,467,027
200,048

47,667.075

$  98,763,140 S 96,559,019

Sec notes to consolidated financial statements.



,FSI Research and Training,Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLIDATED STATEM ENT OF ACT! VITIES

Year Ended September 30, 2018
(With Comparative:Totals for 2017)

2018

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS:

Public'Supporl and Revenue

Public Support:

Government grants and contracts:

2017

U.S. Government

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Other grants and'contracts
Program income

Contributions

.  In-kind project contributions

Interest income

$ 253.d43,526

6,104.553

67,653,412

148,646

3,802,515

2,600,580

359.495

$, 271,426,627

5,258,877

57,926,891
99,859

.332.613

14,444,516

121.168

Total Unrestricted Support and Revenue 334.1 12,727 349,610,5'5I

Expenses

Program Services:

Intematiohai programs
Domestic programs

274,067.835

20,894,935

■ 293,709,946

19,653,59!

Total Program Services 294-962,770 313.363.537

Supporting Services: "

Management and Gcheral

Fuhdraising-

Total Supporting Services-

33.264,070

229,881'

33,493,951

33,327,219

149.914

33,477,133

Total Expenses 328,456,721 346,840,670

Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets .5,656,006 2.769,881

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Program restricted.nct assets

Increase (decrease) in temporarilyrcstricted net assets
- i  32,840

32.840

Increase (decrease) in net assets 5,656,006 2.802,721

Net Assets at Beginning of Year
47.6,67.075 44,864.354

Net Assets at End of Year S  53323,081 $  47,667,075

See'notes to consolidated financial statements;



JSJ Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT QF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Elided September 30, 2018
'(With Comparative.Totals for 2017)

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORTING SERVICES

TOTAL

EXPENSES

International

Programs

Domntic

Programs' Total

Management

And General Fund raising Total' 2018 2017

Salaries

Consulianb;

Coopcmiing Nnltonal

Salaries

Tnivel

Atloivance & Training.

Sul>-coninicls

Equipment. Maicrial and

Supplies

Other Costs

In-kind project expenses

Depreciation

23:490.819

15.089,802

48.291.700

11.852.184

10.944.826

109.851.141

■9.786.037

^0.160.746
2,600,580

8.391.315 S 33.882.134 S'

5.292.500

• 340

874.172

63.463

4.499.510

164.421

1.609.214

20.382,302

48.292.040

11726.356
11.008.289

114.350,651

9.950.458

4I.769.%0

2.600.580

6.151.025

1.688.340

5.67.964

467.576

143,043
18.351

220.300

23.987.646

19.825

140.554

5.250

141

22.438

61.498

. 6.291J79
1.693.590

567:964

467:717

143:043

40.789

220.300

24.049.144

19.825

•40.173,713

22.075,892

4iR60:004
13. W.073

1 1.151.332

1 14.391.440

10.170.758

65.819.104

2.'600.586
19.825

.$ 40:871.378:

21364.241

^6.610.983"
14.0'94,23D
10.422.764

127.851.455

14.425.484

65.738.817

14.444.516

16.802

TOTAL EXPENSE S  274,067.835 20.894.935 S 294,962,770 33.264,070 229.881 33,493.951 S 328,456;72l S 346.840;670

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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JSI Rcsearch.and Training Institute, Inc. and AfHIiate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended September 30,2018
(With Comparative Totals for 2017)

2018 2017 .

Gash Flows Froni Operating Activities:
increase (Decrease) in net assets $  .5.656,00.6 $  ,2,802,721
Adjustments'to recpnciic change iji net assets to net

cash prpyided by pperating activities:
Depreciation 19:825 16,802
(Increase) Decreiise.in receivables for program work (1.1 12,8.61) (1.284,050)
(Increase) Decrease in field advances - program 1.065.530 (26,655)
(Increase) Decrease in employee advances (234) 85,513
(Increase) Decrease in ;prepaid expenses 64,143 (67,950)
(Increase) Decrease in other assets (26,853) (10,830)
jnct;ease (Decrease) in accounts payable and

payroll withholdings 4.450,108 .  804,812
Increase (Decrease) in accrued vacation (1 10,0.14) 96.527
Increase (Decrease) in advances for program work- (7,964.728) 4.453,041

Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Operating Activities 2,040,922 6,869,931.

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Loansjnade (1.96.828) (1,001,492)
Loans repaid 369.577 ,196.828
Acquisition of property and equipment

- (42,606)

Net Cash Provided.(Used) By
Investing Activities 172,749 . (847.270)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Gash and Cash Equivalents 2,213,671 6,022.661

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning.of Year 74,642,976 .68,620,315

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year S  76,856,647 S  74,642,976

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSQIJDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - pROANlZATIdN AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSI Research and Training lnstjtule,.Inc. was incorporated in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
on April 11,, ,1.979. JSI Research ̂ d Training Institute, Inc. provides education and research
primarily to non-profit health and^human semce agencies both iii the.United States and abroad.
Current funding is principally from the United Stales Agency for International.Development and
the United States Department of Health arid Human Seryiccs'(HHS).

JSI Research arid Training Institute, inc. Is the sole member of World Education, inc. "(Affiliate)
with such pO\yers as.are typically accorded to a sole mernber including the.power of appointment
and removal of the World Education, Inc. board of trustees^ the right to approve amendments to
the bylaws and certificate of incorporation of World Education, Inc., and the right,to approve any
merger,,consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial assets of World Education, Inc.

World Educatipn, Inc. (AITiliate) was founded in 1951 incorporated in the stale of New Jersey.
Working in partnership with community, national, and international ;agencies in Asia. Africa, and
the United States, it provides professional assistance in the design and implementation of non-
formal adult education programs. These programs integrate, functional education with relevant
problem-solving aspects of individual growth and national development such as health, nutrition,
family planning, childcare, refugee education, agricultural practices, literacy, and income
generation.

JSI Research, and I raining Institute, Inc. and its affiliate: are tax exempt organizations under 501
(c) ,(3) of the: Internal Revenue Code and file separate unconsolldated tax returns.

NOTE 2 - summary OP SIGNIFICANT ACCOLTNTING POLICIES

Principlcs.of CorisoHdation
The consolidated financial siatcmenLs include the accdunts.df JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc. and World Education, Inc., its affiliate, (collectively referred to as tlie. Organization).
Significant intra-entity accounts'and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Accounting
The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual
basis of accounting and include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. and its
affiliate in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.



JSI Research and Training-Institute, Inc. and AfTiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statenVents. in cohroTmity >vitli accoLihting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that.affect certain reported amounls.and disclosures. Accordingly, actiial resuUs may
differ from those estirnates.

Fair Value

The Organization values its qualifying assets and liabilities under a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs and assumptions^ used to measure fair value; The hierarchy consists of three
broad levels; Level 1 inputs Consist-of unadjusted quoted prices in active rnarkets for identical
assets and liabilities and have the highest priority, I.evei 2 inputs consist of obser\'able inputs other
than quoted prices for identical assets^, and Level 3 inputs have the lowest priority. The
Organization uses appropriate'valuation techniques based on the available inputs to measure the
fair value of its assets and liabilities. When available, the Organization measures fair value using
Level 1 inputs because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair valiie;

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Organization considers all monies in banks and highly liquid inveslmenLs with.maturity dates
of three months or less to be cash'cquivalehts. The carr>'ing value of cash and cash equivalents
approximates fair value because of Lhcshort maturities of those financial instruments.

.investments
Investments in marketable securities with readily dctcrminable fair values and all investments .in
debt securities (marketable inyestrnents) are measured at fair values based on quoted "market prices
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the
statement of activities.

Property^ and Equipment
Property and equipment are fepbfted on the basis of cost less accunuilated ■depreciation.
Acquisitions of property and, equipment in excess of $5,000 are capitalized.. Depreciation is
computed using tlie straight-line method calculated to extinguish the book value of the respective
assets .over their estimated useful lives (5-7 years) of the related assets.

Revenue Recognition
The majority of the Organization's revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements,
and grants with U.S. government agencies., primarily the. United States Agency for international
Development and the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services. Revenues arc
recognized when the Organization incurs qualifying expenditures that .are reimbursable under the
terms of the contracts, agreements or grants, or in accordance with the grantor's restrictions.



JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO COiNSOLIiyATEb FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Revenue Recognition - continued
Unrestricted and restricted contributions are recognized.asTevcnue at the date the pledge is made
or.the gjft is received, whicheveras earlier.

Contributions

Contributions received 'are. recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently
restricted support depending -on the existence and/or. nature of any donor restrictions.
ConiTibutions are reported as temporarily restricted support and are tlien reclassified to unrestricted
net assets upon expiration of the time restriction. Temporarily restricted support, whose
restrictions are met in line same reporting.period, is shown as unrestricted support.

Donated Materials and Services
Donated materials and services-are recorded as in kind project contributions at their estimated fair
market, value as of the'dale of receipt and as an expense in the accpiiipajiying consolidated
statement'of acti vities. Donated services arc recognized if the services received create or enhance
non-financial assets or require;specialized skills that are provided by individuals posses.sing those
skills.and would typically need to be purchased iXribt provided by donation.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Go.de aiid is not a private foundation as described in Section 509. Accordingly, no provision for
.income taxes is included in the accompanying consolidated financial staterhents.

The Organization has evaluated its tax positions and believes that there would be no material
changes to the results of its Qperations or financial position as a result of an audit by the applicable
taxing authorities, federal or state. The Organization has filed all of its known and required returns
in a' timely manner including as permitted allowed extensions, Following administrative practice
of the taxing audiorities, the tax years 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018, remain open years subject to
examjnation and revie>y.

JSI .Research and training Institute, Inc. and World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) file separate
uricpnsolidated tax- returns. JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. files tax returns based on a
Scptertiber 30'^ year end and its affiliate files tax returns based on a June JO"* year end.

Functional Allocation of Expcrtses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the consolidated statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting serx'ices be.nefited.



^Si Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate.
NOTES TO CONSQLibATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONtiNUED

September 30,2018

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - coritinucd

Financial Statement Presentation
In accordance.with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, die
Organization reports Information regarding its financial position and activities accordingab three
classes of net assets: unresfrictcd net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted net assets based upon the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions, l-or tlie
year ended September 30, 2018 there was no activity in permaiiently restricted net assets.

Prior Viear Comparative Totals
rhe financial statements include prior-year summarized comparative information in total. Such
information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity, with
accounting principle.s generally accepted in the. United Stales of .America. Accordingly, such
information should be read.in conjunclibn with the Company's financidl statements for the year
ended September -30, 2017, from which the summarized information was derived.

Reclassiricatlon

Certain amounts lor 2017 have bebn reciassified to cohforin to current year presentation.

NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATION QF CREDIT RISK

The Organi^iion m'ainlains demand deposits and nioriey market funds at financial institutions. At
times, certain balances held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by the United States
Government. The uninsured portions of cash and money.markei accounts, are backed solely by the
assets of the finaticiai institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution could result in a
financial loss to the Organization.^Mowcver, the Ofgahizatiohlias not experienced losses on these
accounts in the past and management .believes the risk of loss, if any, to be minimal.

NOTE 4-INVESTMENTS

Fair Value

In accordance with ̂ accounting principles generally accepted in tlie United States of America, the
Organization values its qualifying assets and liabilities under a fair yalue hierarchy that prioritizes
the inputs and assumptions used to, measure fair value. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
are as follows:
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. a'nd Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

note 4 - INVESTMENTS -.continued

Fair Value - continued

•  Level.} - Obsei^'able inputs ikat reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at tlie riieasurefiierit date.

•  Level 2 - Inputs.other than quoted prices iri active markets that are observable for the asset
either directly or indirectly, including inputs from markets that are not considered to be
active.

•  Level 3 Unobservable inputs which reflect the Ofgahization's assessment of the
assumptions tliat.market participants wou|d use in pricing,the asset or liability including
assumptidns about risk.

A qualifying asset or liability's level within the framework is based upon the lowest level of any
input that is sigriificarit to the fair value measurement.

fhe following is asuitimar}' of fair values of investments which are measured on a.recurring basis
using Level 1. inputs as recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at September
30,2018;

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (invested) $ 63,194,532

S  63,194,532

No as^ts or. liabilities were measured .at Level 2 or Level 3.

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the Consolidated
Statement of Acti vities for the year ended September.30^ 2018:

Unrestricted

Interest income $ 359.495

Total inve.stment return $ 359,495

12



JSI Research and Training institutei Inc. arid Affiliate 1
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL $TATEMENtS - CONTINUED I

Scptcinbcr30,2018

NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES FOR program WORK

Receivables for program work are, stated .at the amount management..expects to collect from
cutsianding balances: -Maiiageriieht provides for probable uncollectable amounts .through a.
provision for bad debt expense and an adjustment to a valuatioii allowance based on its assessment
of the current-status of individual, accounts. Balances that afeistill outstanding-after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are wTitten off thrp.ugli a .charge to the valuation allowance
and a credit'to accounts fecei.Vabie. The allowance for doubtful^ accounls'-at September 30. 2018
was $0. ,

Receivables for. program work consist of the follpwlng at: September 30, 2018:

U.S. Agericyfbr International Development $ 12,911,645
U.S. Dcpartrncnt of HeaUh and Human Scivices 716.214
U..S. Department of Stale -2,219,003
Commonwealth of Massachusetts 847.669

Other - hbn-goverhmental 4,200,598

$ 20,895,129

NOTE 6 - LOANS RECEIVABLE - RELATED PARTY

Loans receivable -^ related party consist of various unsecured short-term loans, due on demand,
from John Snow, Inc., a related party (See NOTE 17). No interest is charged ori the loans. The
loans receivable balance at Septerhber 30, 2018 is $0.
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:JS1.Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 7 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION.

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances are os follows:

Cost

Furniture and equipnieht
Leasehold improvements

679,098

30,355

Accumulated

Depreciation

$  (640,893).,
(30,355)

Net

$  38,205

S  709,453 S (671^48) S_ 38,205

Depreciation expense was $l9,825 for the year ended September 30, 2018.

NOTE 8 - OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the followirig at September 30, 2018:

Deposits

Artwork -.donated

$  109,796
36,945

146,741

Donated artwork is recorded at a discounted appraised value at the date of gift.

NOTE 9 - ACCRUED VACATION

In accordance with formal policies, vacation was accrued at September 30, 2018 as follows:

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate)
$  1,546,016

264,934

S  1,810,950
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•JSi Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATEb FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - AbVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Advances for prograrn work consist of the following at'September 30, 2018;

Other r nonTgoycrnmental
Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. (related party) $ 91,723
Bill & Melinda Gales Foundation. 20,858,284
Other 6.180.730

S  27,130,737

NOTE 11 - LOANS PAYABLE - RELATED PARTY

Loans, payable" - related parly consist of various unsecured short-term loans, payable on demand,
from John Snow, Inc., a related party (See NOTE 17). No interest is charged on the loans. The
loans payable balance at September 30, 2018 is $369,577.

NOTE 12-NOTES. PAYABLE

Citizens Bank .

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) has a revolving line of credit established February 3, 2004 with
Citizens Bank of Massachusetts with a borrowing limit of up to $500,000. The revolving line of
credit was renewed on .September 10, 2018. The loan is payable on demand. Interest, is charged
by utilizing a fluctuating rate based.on the LlBOR (Advantage) rate plus 2.50%. The line of credit
remains in effect until May 31, 20.19 and annually thereafter contingent upon performance. The
loan iscollateralized by.a first priority interest in all the assets of World Education, Inc. No funds
were.bofrowed during the year and as a result; as of September 30. 2018, the outstanding balance
is $0 and no interest was incurred on this loan during the year ended,September 30, 2018.

John Snow. Inc^

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) has an unsecured revolving line of credit established September
1. 2007.with, John Show, Inc. (a related party) with a borrowing limit of up to $1,000,000. The
loan was renewed on July 1, 2016. Interest is charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the
current prime rate plus 0.25%. The. loan is payable .on demand and, in any event, on or prior to
June 30, 2018. T he loan is not coliaterulized. No funds vvere borrowed during the year and as a
result, as of September 30, 2018, the outstanding balance Is $0. No interest was" incuired on this
loan during the year ended September 30, 2018. (See NOTE 17)
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JSI Research and Training ■Instifiitev Inc. and Affdiate
NOTES TO;CONSOLIDATrD FiNANCIALi STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30*2018

NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCIES

In accordance .with the ternis of its federal and;state grants and cdritracts^ the records of the
Organization, are subject to audit. The Organization is, therefore, corilingently liable, for aiiy
disallowed costs.. Management believes that any adjustment, which^might result from such, an
auditj would be immaterial.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-.borrower (with a related party) of a demand loan
with no balajicc due at Scpterhber 30, 2018. Management believes that the co-borrower is current
on the loan and that'its collateral exceeds the baiance due. (See NOTE 17)

Provisionarindirect co.st rates are negotiated with the United Slates Agency for International
Developitient (AID) on an annual basis. As of September 30,2018, actual indirect.cost rates have
been approyed by AID for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. through December 31, 2012
and World Education, Iric. through June, 30, 2015. Based on favorable past experience,
management believes the effects of changes to tlie overhead rates, if any ■ would not be material to
the financial statements.

NOTE 14.^ TEMPORARILV RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net ̂ sets .are,restricted by donors as follows at September 30, 201.8:

Program Services $ 257,209

During the year .ended September 30, 2018, S5.000 of temporarily restricted net, assets were
released from donor restriction by occurrence of events specified by the donor.

NOTE 15 - SURPLUS REVENUE RETENTION

In accordance with; the Massachu'sells Division of Bureau Services, Regulation 808 OMR .1.03(7),
'•"if, through cost savings initiatives iniplemcnted consistent with programmatic and contractual
obligations, a non-profit Contractor accrues an annual net surplus from the revenues and expenses
associated with ser\'ices provided to Departments which are subject to 808 CMR 1.00, the
Contractor may retain, for future, use, a portion of that annual surplus not to exceed 20% of said
revenues. Surpluses may be used by the Contractor ibf any of its established charitable purposes,
provided that no portion of the surplus may be used, for any non-reimbursable cost set forth in 808
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JSi Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO pONSpLiDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30', 2018

NOTE I5- SURPLUS IIEVENUE RETENTION - continued '

CMR 1.05, the free care prohibition'cxceptcd. Operational Services Division shall be responsible
for determining the amount of surplus that may b;e retained by each Contractor in any given year
and may daermine whether any excess surplus shall be used to reduce future prices or be
recouped."

For the year ended September 30,, 2018, the organization did not have an annual net surplus that
exceeded 20% of relevant Massachusetts revenues.

NOTE 16 - GOMMON\yEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

The following is a schedule of expenditures vyith the Commonwealth of Massachusetts:

Receivatiles Irom program work at October 1,2017 $ 584,391
J^eceipts (5,841,275)
Disbursements/expenditures 6,104.553

Receivables from program work- at September 30,2018 $ 847,669

NOTE 17 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

John Snow, Inc.
JSi Research and 1 rainingjnstitute. Inc. (an exempt .organization) and John Snow, Inc. (a non-
exempt corporation) purchase consurtirig services from each other. Mr. Joel Lamstein is President
and Director of both organizations,- and is the sole' stockholder of John Snow, Inc. Tlie two
companies bill each other at the same rates that they bill "tlic federal and state .governments.

During the year ended September 30, 2018, John Snow, Inc. billed JSI Research and training
Institute, Inc. $30,676,239 for'consulting sendees (technical suppon). This amount is reflected
under the program services - consulting line item ($ 16,769,197) and program services - other costs
line item ($13,907,042) on the statement of functional expenses. Iii addition, JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc. performed consulting services (technical support) for John Snow Inc
totaling $7,179,908..

The two companies also share facilities and pool various overhead expenses. For the year ended
September 30, 2018, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. incun-ed $26,038,286 of overhead
expenses (supporting services), of Which $10,220,583 was its share of John Snow. Inc. incurred
costs.
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JSLResearch and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO consolidated FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GONtlNUED

September 30, 2018 .

NOTE 17 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - eontinucd

John Show, Inc.- continued
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower with John Snow, Inc. on a commercial
demand loan-revolving line of credit with an expiration date of May 31. 2019, which allows/for
borrowings up to $6,500,000. 'Hie loan is collateralized by a security agreement with a first
position lien on all :corporate assets of JSI Research and Training Institute,,Inc. and John Snow,
Inc. including assigmnenl, of prorriissofy notes ^id security documents between the two
companies. Interest is charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based oh LIBOR (Advantage) plus
two percent (2.00%) payable monthly in arrears, which at September 30, 2018 was 4.176%. At
September 30, 2018,,a balance of $0 was outstandihgon the loan. Management believes the loan
payable will be extended. When due. under similar terms and conditions.

During the year, the Company had various loans receivable due from, and various loans payable
due to John Snow, Inc. At-September 30, 2018. the loan receivable balance is $0 and the joan
payable balance is $369,577.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate),has an agreemcril with Johii Snow, Inc. whereby John Snow, Inc.
will provide administrative and technical support as deemed necessary by World Education..Inc.'s
Board of Trustees. Transactions with John Snow, Inc. for the year ended September 30, 2018 are
summarized as follows:

Administrative and technical support , $ 1.549.343
Other direct charges (including font of $892,543) 1.276,616

$  2,825,959

The agreement is on a year-to-year b^is and can,be terminated by either party upon ninct>' days
written notice to the other.

World Education, Inc. has an unsecured line ot credit witli Jolin Snow, Inc. witli a borrowing limit
ofup to $1,000,000. (SeeN0TE12)

Partriership for Supply Chain Management, Inc.
Pa.itnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. (PSCM) (an exempt organization) was
incorporated on February 14, 2C)05 by JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Mariagefnent
Sciences for Health, Inc. Each-organization has 50% control.

PSCM.has been awarded a.U.S. government contract to procure and deliver life-saving medicines
and medical supplies to treat HIV/AIDS patients worldwide. The contract for the Supply Chain
Management System project was awarded through the U.S. Agency for the international
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JSI Research and Training institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOUDATEO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NO I E 17 — RELATED PARTY TI^NSACTIONS — continued

Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. — continued
Development/as part of the U.S. government's SlS'billion President's Emergency Plan for AIDS
-Relief.

Mr. Joel Lamstein, President and Director of JSj Research and Training institute, inc., is President
iind Director of PSGM.

During the year ended September 30, 2018, JSI Research and Training institute, inc. billed PSCM
$6,504,555 Tor sei^'ices performed.

Other

The Organization has an agreement with a certain related company to purchase services.
Transactions with this cpnipany were charged to. sUb-contracts expense and are as follows:

The Manoff Group, Inc. (a.non-cxempi corporation;
40% owned by John Snow, Inc.) $ 539.027

S  539,027

NOTE 18 - RETIREMENT PLANS

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has a defined contribution profit sharing/4;01(K) plan
covering substantially all its enipjpyees. Employee contributions are voluntary. As of June 30.
2018, employer contributions were based on a percentage (10% - 15% depending on length of
service) of salary. As of July 1, 2018, the Conipany contributes, an amount equal to 7%, of the
employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll. In addition, employees will
receive a 100% match on the first 2% of contributions made to their retirement account. Employees
who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account will automatically be
enrolled at 2% either at the time of hire, or annually in July. The Plan was effective April 11, 1979.
Pension expense was $4,363,861 for the year ended September 30, 2018.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) provides retirement benefits to substantially all. ernployees under
a plan. World Education, Inc.'s contributions of 7 percent of employee salaries arc iised'to
purchase individual annuities. Additional voluntary contributions may be made by the employees.
Participants of the plan are fully and immediately vested when contributions are made. Pension
costs incurred by World Education, Inc. werc'$357,246 for the year ended September 30, 2018.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and AfTlliate
NOTES TO CONSOLibATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Scp,tcmb6r30, 2018

NOTE 19 - COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases
The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. lea'ses space for general offices under operating leases
expiring from:20J 9 through 2026. The leases contain renewal options for periods of up to 5 years.

During the year ended Sepiehibef 30, 2018, rentals under long-lerrn lease obligations were
$539,464'. .Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company's long-term leases as of
September.30, 2018 are:

Year Ended

September 30,

2019 $ 2,594,650
2020 2,777,736
2021 2'888,057

ITiereafter 1,481,270

$  9,741,713

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) leases space for general dlTices on a year-to-year basis. Rent
expense for the year ended September 30, 2018 was $892,543.

NOTE 20 - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization receives a majority of its funding through .contracts and grants with various
departments and agencies of the Federal government.

The Organization received 10% or more of its revenues and support from, the following sources
for the'year ended September 30,-2018:

Income % of

Received Total Income

U.S. Agency for International Development $ 199,317,085 59.66%
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

Scptcmbcr'30,2018

NOTE 21 - IN KIND PROJECT CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization receives donated materials and services consisting orcominpdities,Tacilities and
equipment, and services for use in its prograrhs from overseas collaborative private ypjuntafy
orgariizalibns and from, foundations providing grants directly to a project. Donated materials and
services totaled $2,600,5.80 for the year ended September 30, 2018, and are reflected as In Kind
Project Contributions, on the Consolidated Statement of Activities and In Kind Project Exj^nses
on the Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.

These contributions satisfy part'of the matching requirements needed to obtain full funding on
certain iJ.S. Agency for International Development grants. During the ye^ ended September 30,
2018, the following donated materials and services received by the Organization have been used
to fulfill matching requirements on active grants:

36697 SPRING $ 180,3.42
368,00 Ad vancing Partners 524,822
36895 Mozambjque M-SIP 14,403
37024^ Tanzania'CHSS . 267,610
37095 Myanmar UNCF-MM.-QOC 45,638
37134 Timor Leste RBHS 25,241
37162 Ghana HIV/AIDS 139,034
37186 Madagascar CCH 1,69,507
37260 Ethiopia.CBN.C.3 18,354
37265 Ethiopia TRANSFORM 262,587
63.114 Uganda 57,043.
64057 Zimbabwe 242,586
64062 Uganda ,  41,226
64071 OUTCOMES 308,063
64074 Mozambique 304,124

2,600,580

NOTE 22 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events, through May i, 2019, the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. During this period, there were no
subsequent events .that rcquire:adjustmenl to the consolidated financial statements.
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JSI Research" ahd/JVainihg Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 201'S

Federal Gruritor/Pass-throiigh Grantor
Program Title

U.S. AGENCY FOR I.NTERNATtONACDEVELOPMENt:

Direct Grants:

Agency or

Pass-through

Number

Federal PA'^^^d

CFDA Through to

Number Subrecipients

Federal

Expenditures

,36521 - Uganda; 1 IIV/A.IDSn'B 6I7-A-00-09-0(K)07-00 98.001 s  - s 151

^6697-SPRING AIDT)AA-A-n-p()03l ,98.001 10,076,.548
36702 - Nepal CHX.Cord Care AID-OAA-A-1 1-00073 98.001 235.961
368.00 - Advancing Partners AID-OAA.A-12-00047 98.001 22,766,072' 46.458,820
36845 - Pakistan HSSP AID-39)-A-13-00002 98.001 (437) 1,973,985
36895 - Mozambique M-SIP AID-656-A-i3-()000'6 98.001 1.584,313
36991 - AIDSFREE AID-0,AA-A-I4.0()046 98.001 36.748,664 62,188,777
37024 - Tanzania CHSS AII)-62l-A-l4-00004 98.0.01 650,551 5,755.790
37129 - Zambia Discover Health A1D-61 1-A-16-00004 98.001 1.569,350 22,602.341
37134 - Timor Leste RBHS AIP-472-A-I6-0000I 98.001 1.432,785
37162 -Ghana IKV/AIDS AID-64I.A-I6-00007 98.001 1,234.077 3.756.222
37186 - Madagascar CCH AID-687-A-I6-00001 98.001 ■348.946 6,506,222
37356 - Building Healthy Chics AllTOAA-A-17-00028 98.001 181,987 651,121
37360 - Pakistan IHSS • SD AlD-3y,l-A-17-UOb02 ,  98.001 1.,0.07,706 3,094.096
37437 -OFDACB 720I-DA18GR00039 98.001 44,792
37462 - USAID Advancing Nutrition 72(«3AAI8C00070 98.001 - . 156,413

Total Direct Grants - CFDA #98.00!
\

Pass-through Grants:
Passed through Partnership for Supply Chain

Management, Inc. (PSCM):
■36519/36524/37034/3.7053/3 7150 - Supply
Chain Management System

Passed through Johns Hopkins University:
3.7099 -Ethiopia SBGG

Passed throu^i Pathfindcr.lntemaiionol:
37265 - Ethiopia TRANSFORM

Passed through Program for Appropriate Tcchnologj'
in Health:

37301 - Open LMiS - PHa^ I
37434 - GOFR Conned

Passed through The National Cooperative Business
Association:

37375 -Senegal FTP CuitNi

64,506,916

CiPO-l-00.05-00032-00 98.001

AID.663-A-I5-00061 T 98.001

Alb663AI700002 98.001

AID.2l34.0l5557t6-CR ,98.001

AIDOAA-A-16.00084 98.001

720685I8CAOOOOI 98.001

166,518,337

4,424.1 12

(6,382)

7,423,425

698

17.020

281.712

Sec notes to Schedule of E.xpenditurcs of Federal Awards. 22



JSI Research and Training institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURESOF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2018

Federal Grnnt'or/Pass-through Grantor

Program Title.

Agency or

Pass-through

Niiriiber

Federal Passed

CFDA Through' to Federal

U;S. AGENCY FOR international DEVELOPMENT:

Pass-through Grants (continued):
Passed through Baylor College of Medicine:

37408 r Baylor SZ MIS, AiD-67J-A-l 16-0003
Passed through United Nations Foundation:

37464 - DIAL Qpeh CMI.S Ali:).OA/\-A-l4.p0067

98.001

98.001

- 134,703

204

Total Pass-through Grants,- CFDA #98.001
12,275,492

Total - CFDA #98.001 - USAID Foreign
•Assistance for Programs Overseas

64,506,916 .178,793,829

TOTAL - U.S. AGENCY FOR INTEHNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
$ 64,506,916 S  178,793,829

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:

Direct Grant:

370,87 - Adolescent HIV/AIDS Prevention MAIAHOOOOOl
93.057 S $  283.156

Total CFDA #93.057 - National Resource Center
for HIV Prevention Among Adolescents

283,156

Pas.<-through Grants:

Passed through Conncciicul Dept. orPublic Health:
37160-CTQl Asthma Program
Passed through Slate of Vermont;'

37212VT I^PDP Evaluation

Passed through Rhode Island Dept. of Mcalrh:
37344 - Tick" Free Rl Branding

Passed through New Hampshire Dept. of HI-IS:
37429 - NH Consulting

Total CFDA #93.070 - Environmental Public

Health and Emergency Response

l-og# 2016-0099 93.070

ConlructS(3l7R6 93.070

N/A 93.070

Agreement (^6/13/18 '93.070

25,827

27,836

10,826

2.497

66,986

Sec notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE QF EXPENDITURES OF FEDEFUL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-lhrough Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

Fetlerai

CFDA

Number

Passed

Through to

Subrcciplcnts

U.S. DEPARTI^ENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - GONTINUED:

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of New Hampshire:
Agrccmciii@2//20/l8' 93.074

UrSN'lG26845-05-00

U30CS29366

N//\

C[.)0-I8-2215

37407 -NCW"-,HERC

Total CFDA #93.074 - Hospital Preparedness
Program

Direct Grant:

36967- Healthy Start
Total CFDA #93.110 - Maternal and Child

Health Federal Consolidated Programs

Direct Grants:

37103 -HITE.O

37363 - CHCAGT UDS 2017

Total CFDA #93.129 - Technical and

,Non-Flnanclal.Assi.stance to Health Centers

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through. Statc of Maine:

373.76-ME DHHS HPSA

Total CFDA #93.130 r.Coopcrativc Agreements
"to States/Territories for the Coordination
and, Dcvel. Of Primary Care Offices

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through iDoston Medjcal Center;

37397 - Project RECOVER Evaluation n/A

Total CFDA #93.137 - Community Programs
to Improve Minority Health Grant Program

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Dartmouth Toxic Metals:

37297- Dartmoulh Arsenic Site APW/DTMSKIvy. 17.17
Total CFDA #93.143 - NIEHS Supcrfund

Hazardous Substances-Basic Research and Education

Pass-through Craiit:

Passed through State of Vemiont.:

37212 -VTHPDP Evaluation

Total CFDA #93.184 - Disabilities Prevention
Coniriiln #31786

93.110

93.129

93.129

93.130

93.137

93.143

93.184

See notcs-to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Federal

Expenditures

5,0'59

5,059

136.940

136,940

949.607

3.158

952,765

47,755

47,755

31.047

31.047

10,083

10,083

3.803

3,803
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JSI Research and Training [nstitutCf Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2018

Federal Crantur/Pass^through Grantor
Agency or

Pass-through,

Federal

CFDA

Passed

Through to Federal

■  imc iNtimner ^unlber

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Subrcciplcnls .  E.xpenditures

Pass-through Grants:

37r63 - FamPlan Data Systems FV16

37255 - UMASS Data Extract '

Agreement @ .3/1/16

N/A

93.217

93.217

- 7.166

489.
37281 - FamPlan Data Systems N/A 93.217 83,374
37313 - ABCD FP System FY18 .AinV/AllCU/5.3l.l7 93.217 47,904
37387 -NYS FP Training DOIIOl-C.3.322966-34500 93.217 _ 102,544
.37390 - NH FP Data Systems FY I8 05.95-90-902010-553,0 93.217 7.4,85
37420 - FomPlan Data Systems Agreement @ 3/1/18 93.217 . 68,704
37450.- RFFP Data 'Systems FYI9 Agreement @ 5.1.18 93.217 - 12.778

Total CFDA ff93.2!7 - Famljy Plannlng'Ser\'lces
. 330,444

■Pass-lhrough Grnnts:
Passcd through Community Health Institute and

Harbor Homes, Inc.:
37i342 - Harbor Horhes Inc.

P^sed through State of Rhode Island:
93.243

- 3,085

■37107 -PFS-Il

Passed througli Smtc pfNew'Hampshirc:
3.426881 93.243

- 74,803

37133 - IICDC Evaluation
37151 - NH DMH Client Survey

Passed through Stale of Vermont:

Agrccincnt@ 10/01/15
Agrcemenl @01/13/16

93.243

93.243

- 32,898

74,712

37212 - VT HPDP Evaluation
Passed ihroijgh Savannah Siatc.University:

Coiurnct#(3i786 93.243
- 22.224

3,7286 - HS Atlanta Consulting Email 7/28/17 93'.243 1,057
Passed through Substance Abuse Center^:
37300 rRI Healthy.Trans
37463 - f^HlS - @MCHC Launch Agrccmcnl @ 9/5/18

93.243

93,243
- 34

965
Total CFDA ##93.243 - Substance Abuse and

Mental Health Services,Projects of Regional
and.National Sjgiilficancc

. 209,778

Direct Grant:

37223 • Fatnily Planning National Training Center
for Service Deliver)' Improvement FPTPA006028 93.260 1.085,862 4.350,177

Total CFDA ##93.260 - Family Planning -
Personnel Training 1,085.862 4,350,177

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,'2018

Federal Crantor/Pass-ihrough Grantor
Progrnrh Title

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERyiCES - CONTINUED:

Federal Passed

.CFDA Through to
Number Subreclpicnls

Direct Grant:

37321 - HRSA.RRHO ■U1I.SHA30789
'Total CFDA #93.266 - Hcalth.Systems

Strengthening and HIV/AIDS Prevention,
Care and Treatment under the President's
Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief

Pass-through Grants:
Passed through Narrag^sen Prevention Partnership:
37148 - NPP Evaluation

Passed through City of Franklin, ■Ni l:-
37290 - FMDTF DFC Eva!

37419 -FMDTF Eva! 17-18
37429 - NH Consulting

Paskd through Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital:
37324 - Upper Valley DFC Eval

Total CFDA #93.276 - Drug-free Communiiies
Support Progratii Grants

Pass-through Grants:
Passed through State of Vermont:
3721.2 - VT HPDP Evaluation Coinracifif3I786
37229 - VTOHC.Support 32307

Tdtiil - CFDA #93.283 --Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention - Investigations
and Technical Assistahce

Direct Grant:

.36891 - PPHF 2013 - OSTLTS Partnerships IU38OT000I88
Total -CFDA #93.292 - Nalipii'a! Public Health

Improv'cmeht Initiative

Agreement @1-01-16

APW/C:0F/I.5.I7

Agreement @ 1/31/18

Agreement @8.2 I.I 8

Agr<xmcnt @ 3-29-17-

93.266

93.276

93.276

93.276

93.276

93.276

93.283

93.283

93.292

Federal
Expenditures

673.717

673,717

1 1.919

2,500

5,399

1.089

9.460

30,367

4,821
12.236

17,057

77.068

77,068

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FFJIERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Agency'or

Pass;th rough
Number

Conlract"'f^31

R rP-201X-DPMS-18-TOHAC

RFI'.2018-DPHS-26.WPRK I-

Agrccriicii't @5/18/18

Federal Crantor/PasHhrough Grahlor
.  .. iProgram Title.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Pass-through Graht.s:

Passed through Vcnpotil.Pcpartmcnt of Health:
3.7212 • Vermont Health Eyaluotibn

Passed through New Hampshire Depi. of Health and
Human Services;

37435:- eSidssfyis
37436 - Workforce Dcvelopincnt

Passed through National Jewish Health:

37438-Tobacco l9QultNow-NH

Total - CFDA^#93.305 - Nat, State Based

Tobacco Cohtrdl Program

Pas.s-(hrough Grant:

Passed-through Harnptph University:

37442 - Hampton University N/A

Total - CFDA #93.307 - Minority Hcaltli and

Health Di.spanties Research

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Council of State and Territorial

Epidemiologists

37453 - CSTE Assessments

Total - CFDA #93.424 - Building Capacity of
thc.Pubtic Health System to Improve-

Population Health through National

Nonprofit Orgahi^tions

Passrthrough Grant:

Passed through New Hampshire Dept. of Health and

Human Services:

37295 - MCH & Tobacco Bundle

Total - CFDA #93.505 - Affordable Care Act

(ACA) Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood
Home. Visiting Program

Agreement® 7/23/18

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to.
Number Subrccipicnts

Federal

Expenditures

93.305

93.305

93.305

93.305

93.307

93.424

93.505

70,3"8I

6L873

30,252

8,30!

170,807

7.894

7,894

28,846

28,846

182,720

182,720

Scc notes tp Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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•13.507

226,481

JSrRescarch and Training Institute, Incy
$CHEDLILE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended Septeniber 30,2018

Agency or Federal Passed

Federal Grantpr/Pass-through Pa.ss-throngh CFDA Through to Federal
Prdgnim Title Nutnber Number Subrecipienti Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT QF HEALTH.AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

PassTthrough Grants:
Passed through NcwTlampshifc, Department of Healih

and Human Services:,

j7326 ■ PMPS FYI8; Agreement 6,21.17 93.53^9 - 47 536
3,7452 - PHPS.FYI9 AgrccmeiiL@6:21.17 .93.539 - I2.6U5

Tptiil - CFDA #93.539 - PPHF Capacity
Building Assistance.to Strengthen Piibllc

Health immunization Infrastructure - 60,141

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of Maine:

37288 - MBCDC'CHW/DBTS CDC-f7-3p73 93.624
Passed through Rhode Island Department of.Heallh:
,3741 I - RI BH Workforce Dev'.FYIg N/A , 93.624

Totai - CFpA #93.624- ACA - Stale.lnnovation
Models: Fuiiding for Model Design and
Model Testing Assistance 239 988

Pass-througliGranl:

Passed through tlie University of Colorado:
.37270-tCPI PSC-00584 93.638 . "
37399 -TCPl Practices PSC-a()584. 93.638

Total - CFDA #93.638 - AGA Transforming
Clinical.Practice Initiative: Practice

Transformation Nclworl^ (PTNs) . 111,905

Direct Grant:

37015 - Tobacco-Usc Prevention NU58DP005338 93.735
Total - CFDA #93.735 - State Public Health

Approaches for Ensuring Quitiine Capacity . 60 457

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through New Hampshire.Department of Health
and Human Services:

'  Agreement @6.21.17 93:753 ; 23,544
37452-PHPS„FY 1,9 Agrecmau,@6.2I.I7 93.753' - I6'257

Total - CFDA #93.753 - Child Lead Poisoning
Prevention Surx'cillancje Financed in part by
Prievcnlion and Public Health Program (RPHF) - 39,801

23.712-

88,193

60,457

See notes to Sciiedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSi Research arid Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2018

Federal Graritdr/Pass-through;Crantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to
Number Subrecinicntis

93.757

93.757

93.757

93.757

UI5I9900I

7549784

Contract #31786

93.758

93.758

93.759

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH.AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Pass-through Grants':

Passed through State of ,New Hampshire:
37048 Natloiia! Diabetes Pfe'vcntlon Program 1042855
37068 - Nil'RHC TA Network n/a
37200 - Public Health Program Services.Support po^f 1031592

Passed through State of.Cdlorado

37413 - GO 0-D Analysis N/A
Total - CFDA #93.757 - State Public Health

Actions to Prevent Dinbete.s, Heart Disease,
Obesity and Assoc. Risk Factors

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Missouri Department of Heallh.'atid

Senior Services:

37130 -MO HEAL

Passed through Rhode Island Department ofHe'alth;

37140 - Rl 'Epidcmiological Support
Passed through State of Verhioni:

.372'!2-VTHPDP Evaluation

Total - CFDA #93.758 --'Prevcnlive Health and

Health Services Block Grant Funded Solely
with Prcveritlpn and Public Health Funds (PPHF)

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services:

37326 -PHPSFY 18 , - Agreement @ 6.21.17
j7452-PHPSFY 19 . Agreement @ 6.21.17

Passed throitgh State oT-Colorado:

37413 - CO - 0.-D Anajj-sis N/A

Total,- CFDA #93.800 - Organized Approaches

to Increase Colorcctal Cancer Screening

Pass-through Grant:
Passed through Speare Memorial Hospital:

37429- NH Consulting PKPfi, 93 317
Total - CFDA^93,8I,7 - Hospital Preparedness
Program (HPP) Ebola Preparedness and

Response Activities

See noles tp Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

93.800

93.800

93.800

Federal

Expenditures

130,702

52,226

7.936

3,922

194,786

41.693

147,007

513

I89;2I3

63,089

22,989

5,882

91,960

4,271

4,271
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JSI Research and Training ihstitute, Inc.
SCHEDULE .OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Federal Grantbr/Pass-thrpugh Grantor
,  ProaramTillc y

Agency or

Pass-through
Number.

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to
Number Subrcciplcnts

Federal

Expenditures

93.870

.93.870

AgrccmciU @ <>.21.17

Agreement @6.21.17

93.889

93.889

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH aND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Pas^through Grants:

Passed'thrpugh New Hampshire Department
of Health and Hiiman.Scrvices:

37326 -;PHPS FYI8. Agri:cmoni@6.2I.I7
37452, - PHPS19 Agrccntcm @ 6.21.17

Total - CFDA #93.870 - Maternal, Infarit and '

Early Childhood Home VIsiting'Grant Program

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through'New llampshire Department

of Health and Human Services;

37326 - PHPS, FY18

37452 -PHPSI9

Total - CFDA #93.889 - iNational Bioterrorisin

Hospital Preparedness Program

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Vcmioni Department of Health:

-37212-VT HPDP Evaluation

Passed through New Hampshjre Department
of Health and Human Services:

37440 - NH CCC Stat Ping
Passed through Massachusetts Dept. of Public Health:
37460 - DPH Pall Care,

Total r CFDA #93.898 Cancer Prevention and

Control Proeram.s for State, Territorial and
Tribal Org'nnizatlon

Pa.ss-t h roil g h'C ra n t:

Passed through Slate of New Hampshire:
37068 - Technical Assistance Network for Rural

Health Clinics N/A 93.913

Total - CFDA #93.913 - Grants to States for

Operation of Orrice.s of Rural Health

Contrn<;t#317H6

Agreement @4.20.18

93.898

93.898

CAI>ACITYLYDI.D500824M(W 93.898

224.636

65.883

290,519

58,771

4.589

63J60

32,154

577

4,83

37,562

24,106.

24,106

See notes to Schedule of Expciiditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Cirohldr
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

Federal

CFDA

Number

Passed

Through to

Subreclpicnts

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEACTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED

Direct Grants:

37191 - HIV Integrated Planning U69MA30144
37194 - RWHAP ACE.HeaitIi Training U6'JIIA30I43

37327 - CHATT Planning TA U(i9IIA.10795

Pass-through Grants:

Passed tlirougK Boston.Public Health Commission:

37170 - Quality Assurance Agrctmcnl @ 3-OM 6
Passed through Fenway Community Health:
37444 -'Fenway E2i Toolkits Agreement @6.14,18

93.914

93.914

93.914

93.914

93.914

144.592

399

Federal

Expenditures

546,598

.385,489

524.848

12.7,62

26.945
Tofnl • CFDA #93.914 - HiV Emergcticy Relief

Project Grants
144,991 1,596,642

Direct Gnint:

36967 - Healthy Start Performance Project UI-5MC26845 93.926 140,435 2.315.907
Total - CFDA #93!.926 -.Healthy Start Initiative 140,435 2,315,907

Direct Grant:

36945 - CDC CBA FY15,- FV19 U65PS004406 93.939 . 930.854
Total - CFDA #93,939 - HIV Prcvcnlion

Activities • NGO Based - 930,854

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through State of Massachusetts:'

37|53 - CoRECT Study PRI-61
93.943 53,585.

Total - CFDA #93.943 - Epidcmiologic

Research Studies of Acquired

Immunodeficiency System (AIDS) and
Human Immunodendcncy Virus (HIV)

Infection In Selected Groups
. 53,585

Pass-through Grant:
Passed through South County Hospital Healthcare System:
37091 - South County Heajth Equity Zone Agreement @5-1-15

93.945 . 19.809
Total - CFDA #93.945 - Assistance Programs

for ChronlciDiscasc Prevention and Control
- 19,809

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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TOTAL - U.S.'DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SERVICES

|8

193,961

1 1,729

JSI Research aiid Training Institute, Inc.
schedule of expenditures of federal awards

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Agency or ^'cdcraj Passed
Federal Gruntor/Pass-through Grantor Pass'^througli CFDA Through to Federal

—  Program Title ^ ■ ■ Number Number Subrecipicnts F.xpehdlturcs
U;S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN S>.RVIGES - CONTINUED

Pass-through Grunts:

Passed through State, of Rhode.Island;

3'6801 - Prevcn|ipn Resource Center 3316844 93.959
37349-.RlHRCir 3534294; 93.959

Passed througji New Hamp. Prcvcritiqn Certification
Board of New'Hampshirc:
37I68-NHPCS Workforce Development N/A 93.959

Total - CFDA #93.959 - Block Grants for '

Prevention arid Treatment of Substance Abuse - 205,708

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Arizona Family Health Partnership:

37328 -AFMPCT "Screening I7.JSn 93.9,77 - 1,342
Total - CFDA #93.977 -.Sexually Transmitted

Diseases (STD)'Prcvcntlon and Contrqi Crants - 1,342
Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Vermont Department of Health:

37279 - VT 3r4-50 32435 93.991 3.925 1925
Total - CFDA #93.991 - PrcvcntatlVe Health

\

and Health Services Block Grant 3,925 3^925

Pass-through Gi;ants:

Passed through.Staie of Vermont:

37294 - VT Safe Sleep 33460 93.994
Passed through New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services:.

37326 -PHPS19 Agreement @ 6.21.17 93.994

Total-CFDA #93.994-Maternal & Child
Health Servicts Block.cyaiit to the States _ 935

$  1,375,213 $ 14,231,295

54,985

24,000

See notes to Schedule of Expenditui^s of Federal Awards.
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Agency or

Pass-through

Number

Federal Craritpr/Pass-th^^ Grantor

Program Title.

U.S. DEPARtlviENT Of HOMELAND SECURITY:

Direct Grants:

.United States Coast Guard-

37302 - Nat'l. Estimate oELire Jacket Wear Rate 33l7rAN17Q2IO.
37427 r Nat'l. Estimate qfUlfe Jackcr Wear Rate ,33I7I-AN17()2I0

Total CFDA #97.012 - Boating Safety Financial

AssistaiVcc

TOTAL - U,S. DEPAkTMENT.OF HOMELAND

SECURITY

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to Federal

Number Stibrccipicnls Expenditures

.97.012 S. 3,714 S 57,965

97.012 - 1 11.826

3,714 169,791

S  3,714 S. 169.791

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF .JUSTICE:

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Slate of New Hampshire:
37250 - Juvenile;Piversibn Evaluation

Total - CFDA #16.540 -'Juvenile Justice and

Delinquency Prevention - Allocation to States

TOtAL U;S, DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

16.540 $ 25,121

25,121

25,121

environmental PROTECTibN AGENCY:

Pass-through Grants!

Passed through.New Hampshire.Department of Health

and Human Seivices:

37326 - PHPS FYI8 Agrecmchr/«V6.2l.i7
37452 - PHPSI9 Agreement @ 6.21.17

Total - CFDA #66.707 - TSCA Title IV State

Lead Grants Certification of Lead.Bascd

Paint Professionals

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

AGENCY

66.707 S 75,530 S

66.707

75,530

$  75.530 S

31,255

13,598

44,853

44,853

See notes io Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDltURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor
ProgramTitIc

Agency or

Pass-through

Number

U.S. DEPARTM ENT OF AGRICULTURE:

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Food Insccurit)' Nutrition Incentive (FINI):

37257 - FINI Evaluation PRFOI

Total CFDA;#I0.331 - Food Insecurity

Nutrition; Incentive Grants Program

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through State of Vcrmoht;

37212 - VT HPDP Eyaluation, 3075^1

Total CFDA #10.561 - State Administrative

Matching Grants for the Supplemental

Nutrition.Assistance Program

TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to Federal

Number Subrecipicnls Expenditures

10.331 S

10.561 4,787

4,787

I r2,759

112.759

.4,273.

4,273

4,787 S 117.032

U.S. department OF STATE:

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Dreanis'lnnoyation Challenge:
37188 -DREAMS

Total CFDA #19.029 - The U.S. President's

Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief Programs

Direct Grant:

37244 - Russia P2P

S-LMAOM-16-CA-II03 19.029 S 23.380.845 S 28.999.322

S-RS500-I6.CA-I79

Total CFDA #19.900 - AEECA/ESF PD Programs

TOTAL - U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE

23380,845

19.900

28,999322

20

20

S 23380,845 S 28;999342

See riotes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Federal Crantor/Pass-through.Grantor
;  Program Title

U S, DEPARTMENT OFC0MMF;RGE:

Pass-through Crtini:

Passed, through Regents of the Universitxpf Michigan:
"373J}3,-Cape Cod Coastal

Total GFDA ftl 1.419 - Couslai Zonc

Management Adhilnistrution Awards

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

Federal Passed-

CFDA Through to
Number Subrccipicnts

.11.419 S.

Federal

Expenditures

2,853

.2,853

2,853

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS S 89,347,005 S 222,384.116

Sec notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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iiSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

September 30. 2018

NOTE, I - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying scliedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal,grant activity of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. under programs of the federal
government;-for the year ended September 30, 20r8. The information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance .with the requirements of Title,=2 U.S. Code of.Federal ReguhtUms Part
200, Uniform Admnistrative Rcqm^^^ Cost Prmciples\.aird Audit Reqidrements for Federal
Awards (Unilorm Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present
the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained
in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or
are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Catalog of federal Domestic Assistance (GFDA) numbers and pass-through entity
identifying numbers are presented when available.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has elected not to use the 10% de mininiis indirect cost
rate'alloweduhder the Uniform Guidance.

36



A'ORMAN, R.;FOIJOGRI:VJR. CPA
99HlERifAOirLANK . -
Duxburv, iMA. 02332~t334

POUGERJ3

CcrlifieJ Putlic

Ac count an t

PnOxN'l:: 78J'.934-0460

•FAX: 7dJ-.934-0606:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND pTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDit OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To Ihe Board of Directors.

JSI Rese^ch and'Pruning Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

We have audited, in accordance.wth the.auditing standards generally accepted in the United
Slates of America and. the standards .applicable to financial audits contained in (jovernmenl
Auditing Standards issued ,by the ComplroUer .Gencfal of the United States, llie consolidated
financial statenients.of JSLResearch and Trairiihg "Institute, Inc. and Affiliate ("Organization"),
which comprise'the consolidated 'statemeni of financial :posiiioh as of September 30.. 2018^ and
the related consolidated statements of activities; and cash flows fpr the year then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated'financial statements.,and have issued our report thereon dated
Mayi.;20l9. , •

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and perfomiingbur audit'of the cohsplidated financial statements^" we consid.ered JSI
Research and Training Institute, Inc. and, its alTiliate'S internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine, the audifprocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing o.ur opinion on the corispHdated, financial statements, but not for .the
p.urjwse'o'f expfessihg;an opinion on the effectivencss of JSi Research and Training institute. Inc.
and Affiliates' s internal control. Accordingly,'we do not express an opinion.on the effectiveness
of.the Organization's internal.control.

A deficiency 'in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control 'docs not allow
rnapagement or .erhployees,' in the nomial course of perfonning their assigned furi;ctions, to
prevent, or delect -.and correct, misstatcmchts on a tirriely basis. A maiericil weakness is a
deficiency, Of a'Combinatipn of deficiencies, in internal control, siich ihat there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misslatement of the Organi^tion's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significdnt deficiency is a deficiency,
ofa combination of deficiencies, in internal .control that is'Iess severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those;charged \yith governance.
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Our consi'deralion of internal-control was for the limited purpose described in the. first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify .all deficiencies in internal .control that might be
■material weaknesses or significant,deficiencies Given these limitations, during.our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies m internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist Uial have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

A.S part of obtaining, reasonable assurance about, whether JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc. and Affiliate's consolidated financial statements arC free from rnaterial misstatement, we
performed .tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
.grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct, and material effect on the.
determination of financial siaiemerit ^lounis. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an. opinion. The results of our tests disclosed ho. instances of noncompliance or other matters
thai are required to be'reported, under Governmen/ Audiiing iSfcmdards.

Purpose of this Report

This purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our" testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of'that testing, and no.t to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization s Internal contrbl of on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit,
performed in accordance, with Ooyenirnenf Audiiing Siandards in considering the organization's
internal contrbl and compliance. Accordingly, this communicalion is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Duxbur>', Massachusetts
May 1, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

Over compliance required by the uniform guidance

To the Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, [no, and Affiliate. ,

Report on Compliance for'Each Majpr.Fcderal Program
I  »

We have audited JSI Research and Training Institute, -Inc/s. compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Conipiiqncc Supplement that could have a direct
and-material effect on each ot JSl Reseafch and .Training Institute, Incv's major federal programs
for the year ended September 30, 2018. JSI Research and Training institute, Inc 's major federal
program's are-identified in "the summar)' of,auditora''results-section of the accompaiiying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. '

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for.compliance..with federal statutes, regulMions, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Aitditdr-sResp[on'sibi{ity

Our^ respon'sibility is to express an -opinion on compliance for each of JSI Research and Training
Institute; Inc. s major federal programs based on pur audjt of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of-compliance in accordance with
.auditing standards generally accepted in the-United S'tates.of America; the-standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing S'tanddrds, issued by the Comptroller
General 'of the Uriited Stales;, and-the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. CVWc of Federal
Regii/ations Pan. 20.0, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audil'
Requirements-for hederai Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards ruid the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliancc-with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, oh a test basis, evidence about JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s compliance
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with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered-necessary in the
cifcumstahces. . j .

We believe thiat our audit .provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on cpmpliancc 'for cach
major federaj program, However, our audit does ,not provide a legal determination of JSl
Kese^ch and Trainmg Institute, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, JSl Research ahdJraining institute, Inc. complied, in all material respects with
the compliance requirements-referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs, for the year ended September 30, 2018.

Report on Internal Control Over Gqmpliance

Management of JSl Research and 1 raining .Institute, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining elfective internal control over coinpliance vvidi the types of compliance
requirements referred to above, in planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirement? that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program
)to detefrhme the auditing procedures that arc appropriate-in-the circumstances for the purpose of
'expressing an opinion, on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance vyith the Uniform, Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of .internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we dp not express an opinion on the effectiyencss of JSl Research and Trainine
Institute, Inc.'s internal.controf pvCr compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a controj
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of pcrfomiing
their assigned functions, to 'prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type, of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, pr combination of deficibncies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility thal.matenal noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a liniely basis. A significm deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies; in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internai control over compliance was for the iihiited purpose described in
the first paragraph ̂ of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
conu^l over cdmpliance that might be material weakiiesses or significant deficiencies. We did'
not Identify aiiy deficiencies in internal control over cbmpliance that we-consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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World Education^ Inc. (Affiliate) maintains a different fiscal year (June 30) and has its own stand
alone audit performed in accordmice with the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 20.0,
Uniform .Administrative^ Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform .Guidance). However, the consolidated financial statements contain, the
combined activity of JSI Research and Training, Institute and Worid Education; Inc.

The purpose of this report on mtemal control over compliance is solely to .describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Duxbur}'., .Massachusetts
May 1,2019
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JS! Research and Training Institute/lnc. and Affiliate
'SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COStS

September 30. 2018

SECTION 1 - Summary of. Auditors* Results:

FinanciaJStqtemenis

the type of report issued on the-financial statements: .
Internal control over financial reporting:
• Material weaknesses identified?
•  Sighiticahl deficiencies identified thtit are

not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncpmpliahce material'lo the financial statements noted?

Federal A wards

Internal control 6ver:rhajor programs:
• Material weaknesses identified?

•  Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material wetnesses?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Any audit findings which are required.to be reported under
2 CFR section 200.536(a):

•  Identification of major programs:

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type. A
and Type B programs:

'Auditee qualified as low risk auditee under 2 CFR
Section 200.520

Unmodified opinion

No

None reported

No

No

No

Unrrio.clified opinion

No,

USAID Foreign As.sistancc for
for Programs Overseas
CFDA #98.001

The U.S. President's Emergency
Plan for AIDS Relief Program's
CFDA #19.029

Family Planning - Personnel
Training
CFDA#93.260

$3,000,000

Yes
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STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR»S FINpiNGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Th^re were-no reportable.findings or-questibried,costs for the year ended S.eplemWr 30, 2017.
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